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ANNUAL FILING AFFIDAVIT

THE STATE OF TEXAS 5530000

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK CO WCID 1

(Duly Authorized District Representative)

of the

(Name of District)

Hereby swear, or affirm, that the District named above has reviewed, approved and filed at a
meeting of the board of Directors of the Water District on the day of
20, acopy of its annual audit report of the fiscal year or period ended
in the District office, located at

1

(Address of District)
The annual filing affidavit and the attached copy of the annual audit report are being

submitted to the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission in satisfaction of all
annual filing requirements within Section 49.194 of the Texas Water Code.

Date , 20 . By:

(Signature of District Representative)

(Name and Title of District Representative)

Sworn to and subscribed to before me this day of , 20

(Signature of Notary)
(SEAL)

Commission expires on , 20 . Notary Public in the State of Texas.
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Terry & King, CPAs, P.C,

5707 114t Street
P.0. Box 93550 Randel J. Terry, CPA
Lubbock, TX 79493-3550 Ryan R. King, CPA

Telephone - (806) 698-8858 — Fax — (866) 288-6490

Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements

Board of Directors

Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1
9899 High Meadow Road

Lubbock, TX 79404

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lubbock County
Water Control and Improvement District No. 1, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Staternents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementaticn, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lubbock County Water Conirol and
Improvement District No. 1, as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

2.

Members American inslifute of Certified Public Accountants and the Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants

@

The CPA, Never Underestimate The Valus.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and pension/OPEB schedules identified as
Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1's basic financial statements.
The accompanying other schedules listed in the table of contents as Other Supplementary Information
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. This information is the responsibility of management and was detived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and othet records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
fo the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Respectfully submitted,

O E .
- ﬂ t
Terry & King, CPAs

Lubbock, Texas
February 17, 2020




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement
District No. 1’s financial performance provides an overview of the District’s financial
activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. Please read this in conjunction with
the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The District’s net position increased as a result of this year’s operations. While net
position of our business-type activities decreased by $18,337, net position of our
governmental activities increased by $469,742.

e During the year, the District had expenses that were $490,920 less than the
$2,089,676 generated in revenues for governmental programs.

¢ In the District’s business type activities, revenues increased $4,399 to $520,245 (or
1%) while operating expenses decreased $91,086 to $565,760.

e The General fund reported a surplus this year of $368,236 prior to inter-fund
transfers to other funds of $27,178.

e The resources available for appropriation were $97,208 more than budgeted for the
General Fund. Expenditures for the General Fund were less than the budgeted
amounts by $49,382.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the District’s finances. Fund
financial statements start on page 15. For governmental activities, these statements tell
how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the District’s operations in more detail
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the District’s
most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about
activities for which the Disirict acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those
outside of the government.




Reporting the District as a Whole -- The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities

Our analysis of the District as a whole begins on page 6. One of the most important
questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District as a whole better off or
worse as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its
activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets
and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses
are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in it. You can think
of the District’s net position—the differences between assets and liabilities—as one
way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the District’s net position is one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-
financial factors, however, such as changes in the condition of the District’s
infrastructure, to assess the overall health of the District.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the District
into two kinds of activities:

e (overnmental activities — Most of the District’s basic services are reported here,
including general administration, police and safety, parks, special events, and
customer service. Gate revenues, special event revenues, lot leases and rentals,
and grants and contributions finance most of these activities.

¢ Business-type activities — The District charges a fee to customers to help it cover
the cost of certain services it provides. The District’s utility services are
reported here.

Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds — Fund Financial Statements

Qur analysis of the District’s major funds begins on page 10. The fund financial statements
begin on page 15 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds—not
the District as a whole, At times the District may establish other funds to help it control
and manage money for particular purposes, such as special projects or to show that it is
meeting legal responsibilities for using certain Federal or State grants. Currently the
District’s governmental funds consist of the General Fund and a special revenue fund to
account for special projects. The District’s two kinds of funds — governmental and
proprietary — use different accounting approaches.




e Governmental funds—Most of the District’s basic services are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds
and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending, These funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
The Governmental fund statements provide a detailed shori-term view of the
District’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities)
and governmental funds in reconciliation on Exhibits C-1R and C-3.

e Proprietary funds—When the District charges customers for the services it
provides—whether to outside customers or to other units of the District—these
services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported
in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities. In fact, the District’s enterprise funds (a component of
proprietary funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information,
such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The District’s combined net position was $4,117,220. Our following analysis focuses on
the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the District’s total
primary government.




" FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
Net position. The District's combined net position was $4,117,220 at September 30, 2019. (See Table A-1).

Table A-1
Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1's Net Position

Total
Primary Government
Percentage
September 30, 2018  Sepfember 30, 2018 Change
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,423 324 1,090,458 31%
Accounts Receivable 49,180 40,932 20%
Deposits 50 50 0%
Total current assets. 1,472,554 1,131,440 30%
Noncurrent assets:
Net Pension Asset 208,671 170,165 23%
Construction in Progress 97,358 9,022 979%
Land 429,903 429,903 0%
Buildings & Improvements 6,949,168 6,712,275 4%
Less accumulated depreciation,
buildings & improvements (5,192,756} (4,966,713) 5%
Furniture & Equipment 1,330,551 1,265,167 5%
Less accumulated depreciation,
furniture & equipment (1,025,083} {964,355) 6%
Total noncurrent assets 2,797,812 2,655 454 5%
Total Assets 4,270,366 3,786,884 13%
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred OQutflows - Pension & OPEB 186,110 102,112 82%
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources 186,110 102,112 82%
Current liahilities:
Accounts Payable 68,271 73,105 7%
Renter Deposits 1,651 3,095 -47%
Unearned Revenue 5,226 4,719 11%
Total current liabiliies 75,148 80,919 ~7%
Long-term liabilities:
Total OPEB Liability 29,536 35,430 -17%
Due within one year 14,149 14,149 0%
Due in more than one year 70,744 84,893 -17%
Total long-term liabilities 114,429 134,472 -15%
Total Liabilities 189,577 215,391 -12%
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows - Pension 149,679 7,800 1819%
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 149,679 7,600 1819%
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assefs 2,689,141 2,485,289 4%
Unrestricted 1,528,079 1,180,526 29%
Total Net Position 4,117,220 3,665,815 12%

The $1,528,079 of unrestricted net position represents resources available to fund the programs
of the District next year.



Net Position of the District as a whole, increased 12% ($4,117,220 compared to
$3,665,815). Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance
day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling
legislation, or other legal requirements - changed from $1,180,526 to $1,528,079.

, Table A-2
Changes in Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1's Net Position

Total
Primary Government
Percentage
2019 . 2018 Change
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services 2,336,007 2,286,987 2%
General Revenues:

Lot Lease Revenue 186,064 179,877 3%

Investment Earhings 3,203 1,470 118%

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets ‘ 6,000 120,151 -95%

Other Cperating Revenue 78,647 79,381 -1%
Total Revenues 2,609,921 2,667,866 -2%

General Administration 417,436 398,137 5%

Police and Safety 240,504 227,325 6%

Parks 599,139 807,495 -33%

Special Events 110,280 122,776 -10%

Cusfomer Service 225,397 165,398 36%

Utility Activities 565,760 656,846 -14%
Total Expenses 2,168,616 2,467,977 -13%
Excess {Deficiency)} Before

Other Resources, Uses &

Transfers 451,405 199,889 126%
Other Resources {(Uses) - - 0%
Transfers In {(Out) - - 0%
Increase {Decrease) in

Net Position 451,405 199,889 126%
Net Position - Beginning 3,665,815 3,492,541 5%
Change in GASB Standard - (26,615) -100%
Net Position - Ending 4,117,220 3,665,815 12%

- The District's total revenues were $2,609,921. A significant portion, 20%, of the District's total
revenue comes from the utilities operations. Revenue available to fund governmental activities

consists of charges for services (87%), lot leases (9%), and other revenues (4%)



The total cost of all programs and services was $2,158,516; 26% of these costs were for
utilities production and administration expenses. Expenses for governmental activities
consisted of costs for general administration (26%), police and safety (15%), parks (38%),
special events (7%), and customer service (14%).

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the District’s governmental activities decreased approximately 3%, and total
expenses decreased by 12%.

e Charges for services (gate revenues and special events revenues) increased $16,716.
e Lot lease and rental revenues increased by $34,094,

e The District sold assets in the prior year resulting in gain of $108,000, but asset
sales only amounted to $6,000 in the current year.

e The cost of all governmental activities this year was $1,592,756. As shown in the
Statement of Activities, the amount that our lessors ultimately financed for these
activities through lot lease revenues was $186,064 because most of the costs were
paid by those who directly benefited from the programs ($2,336,007).

Business-type Activities

Revenues of the District’s business-type activities (see table A-2) increased by $4,399 and
expenses decreased by 14% ($565,760 from $656,846).




THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As the District completed the fiscal year, its governmental funds (as presented in the
balance sheet on Exhibit C-1) reported a combined fund balance of $1,255,974, which is an
increase from the prior year’s total of $914,916. The following items effecting fund .
balance should be noted:

o In the current year, expenditures were less than revenues by $368,236.

e The revenues in the general fund decreased approximately 2% from the prior period
and expenses for the general fund decreased 7% from the prior period. In the
current year, the general fund expended $418,822 for capital expenditures.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revised the budget several times. Even with these
adjustments, actual revenues were $97,208 above budgeted amounts and expenditures were
$49,382 less than final budget amounts.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2019, the District had $8,806,980 invested in a broad range of capital assets,
including buildings, furniture and equipment, and utilities equipment (see Table A-3). This

amount represents a net increase (including additions and deductions) of $390,623, or 5%,
over last year.

Table A-3
Fixed Assets

Governmental Balance Deletions/ Balance
Activities: 10-1-18 Additions  Reclassifications 9-30-19
Land $ 429,903 - - 426,903
Construction in Progress 9,022 88,336 - 97,358
Buildings &

Improvements 6,152,443 236,803 - 6,389,336
Fumniture & Equipment 1,040,864 93,594 28,200 1,106,258

Accumulated Depreciation _ (5.408.970) (279.371) {28,200) (5,660,141)
Net Capital Assets $ 2223262 § 139,452 § - $ 2,362,714

10




Business-Type Balance Deletions/ Balance

Activities: 10-1-18 Additions  Reclassifications 09-30-19
Buildings&

Improvements $ 559,832 § - $ - $ 559,832
Equipment 224,293 - - 224,293
Accumulated Depreciation ( 522.098) {35,599 - {557,697)
Net Capital Assets $ 262,027 $(35599) §$ - § 226428

More detailed information about the District’s capital assets is presented in the notes to the
financial statements.

Debt

The District owes Lubbock County for prior election costs $84,893 which is due in annual

installments of $14,149 for the next 6 years. This liability is reported in the governmental
funds.

Due
Governmental Balance Balance Within
Activities; 10-1-18 Additions Decreases 9-30-19 One Year
$ 95042 % - $ 14,149 $ 84.893 $14.149
Total L-T Debt $ 99042 § - $ 14149 3 84893 $14.149

More detailed information about the District’s long-term obligations is presented in the
notes to the financial statements.

11
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F.CONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The District’s elected officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2020
budget and fees. Factors considered include the current economy and the needs of the
District in the coming year. The Board has adopted budgets and set fees accordingly.

If these estimates are realized, the District’s budgetary general fund fund balance is not
expected to change appreciably by the close of 2020.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the District’s office located at Buffalo Springs Lake in Lubbock,
Texas.

12
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2019

Primary Government

13-

EXHIBIT A1

Governmental Business-lype

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,376,703 3 46621 $ 1,423,324
Accounts Receivable - 49180 49180
Deposits - 50 50
Net Pension Asset 169,768 38,903 208,671
Capital Assets:
Land 429,903 - 429,803
Buildings & Improvements, net 1,683,567 172,845 1,756,412
Furniture & Egquipment, net 251,886 53,682 305,468
Construction in Progress 97,358 - 97,358
TOTAL ASSETS $§ 3909185 % 361,181 § 4,270,366
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
" Deferred Qutflows - Pension $ 155,438 $ 24741 § 180,179
Deferred Ouifiows - OPEB 5,083 848 5,931
TOTAL PEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES § 160,521 $ 25589 § 186,110
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 5 28,959 $ 39,312 % 68,271
Renter Deposits 1,651 - 1,651
Unearned Revenue 5,226 - 5,226
Due within one year 14,149 - 14,149
Noncurrent Liabilities: .
Due in more than one year 70,744 - 70,744
Met OPEB Liability 25,150 4,386 29,536
Total Liabilities 3 145,879 § 43,698 $ 189,577
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows - Pension 121,757 20,301 142,058
Deferred Inflows - OPEB 6,511 1,110 7,621
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 128,268 21,411 149,679
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets $ 2362714 § 226,427 $ 2,589,141
Unrestricted 1,432,845 95,234 1,628,078
Total Net Position $ 3795558 § 321,661 $ 4,117,220

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Program Revenues

44

EXHIBIT B-1

Net {Expense)} Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Primary Governmen
Charges for  Grantsand  Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
Government Activities:
General Administration 417,436 $ - $ - 8 - $  (417,438) - (417,436)
Police and Safety 240,504 - - - {240,504} - (240,504)
Parks 599,139 1,763,033 - - 1,163,894 - 1,163,894
Special Events 110,280 52,729 - - (57,551} - (57,551}
Customer Service 225397 - - - (225,397} - (225,397)
Total Government Activities 1,692,756 1,815,762 - - 223,006 - 223,006
Business-type Activities .
Utilities Fund 565760 520,245 - - - {45,515) (45,515)
Total Primary Government 2,158,516 2,336,007 - - 223,006 {45,515) 177,491
General Revenues
Lot Lease Revenue 186,064 - 186,064
Investment Earnings 3,203 - 3,203
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 6,000 - 6,000
Other Revenue {Expense 78,647 - 78,647
Transfers (27,178) 27,178 -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 246,736 27,178 273,914
Change in Net Position 469,742 (18,337) 451,405
Net Position -- Beginning 3,325,817 339,998 3,665,815
Net Position —- Ending $ 3,795559 % 321,861 $ 4,117,220

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

BALANCE SHEET -- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Renter Deposits
Unearned Revenues
Due to County-Election Costs

Total Liabilities

FUND EQUITIES
Fund Balance-Unassigned

Total Fund Equities

LLIAB ES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

September 30, 2018

-15-

EXHIBIT C-1
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
$ 1,376,703 $ - $ 1,376,703
$ 1,376,703 3 - $ 1,376,703
$ 28,959 3 - $ 28,959
1,651 - 1,651
5,226 - 5,226
84,893 - 84,893
120,729 - 120,729
1,255,974 - 1,255,974
1,255,974 - 1,255,974
$ 1,376,703 $ - $ 1,376,703
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EXHIBIT C-1R

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances -~ Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (A-1)
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Included in the items related to noncurrent assets is the recognition of the City's
proportionate share of the net pension asset required by GASB 68 in the
amount of $169,768, a deferred resource outflow related to Pensions in the
amount of $155,438, and a deferred resource inflow in the amount of $121,757.
This resulted in an increase in net position by $203,449.

Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the City's proportionate
share of the net OPEB liability required by GASB 75 in the amount of $25,150.
The net position included a deferred resource outflow related to OPEB in the
amount of $5,083 and a deferred ressourse inflow of $6,511, This resulted in
a decrease in net position by $26,578.

Net Position of Governmental Activities -- Statement of Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$ 1,255,974

2,362,714

203,449

(26,578)

$ 3,795,650
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES--

REVENUES:

Gate Revenue

Special Events Revenue
Lot Lease Revenue
Rental Revenue
Interest Revenue

Other Operating Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
Salaries
Payroll Taxes
Employee Benefits
Tools and Supplies
Repairs & Maintenance
Utilities
Office Supplies
Printing and Postage
Adveriising and Public Relations
Direct Promotional Expense
Dues, Fees and Subscriptions
Training and Travel
Accounting and Legal
Election Expense
Contracted Services
Rental Expense
Bank Fees and Charges
Insurance
COther

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Sources (Uses)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

General
Fund

3 1,711,148

186,064
51,886
3,203
78,647
2,030,948

535,940
12,240
127,083
43,039
121,101
189,220
14,699
6,850
5744

2,926
14,382
28,500

3,351
18,126
14,728
24,515
28,654
13,332

418,822

1,623,652
407,396

6,000

{72,338)
{66,338)

Excess of Revenues & Other Financing Sources Over

{Under) Expenditures & Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance—-Beginning of Year

341,068
914,916

$ 1,255,974

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-2
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds
$ - $ 1,711,148
52,729 52,729
- 186,064
- 51,886
- 3,203
- 78,647
52,729 2,083,677
31,440 567,380
426 12,666
6,423 133,506
8 43,047
951 122,052
891 190,111
- 14,899
422 7,272
30,045 35,789
25,308 25,308
344 3,270
187 14,569
- 28,500
- 3,351
- 18,126
- 14,728
- 24515
655 29,309
789 14,121
- 418,822
97,889 1,721,441
{45,160} 362,236
6,000
45,160 45,160
- {72,338)
45,160 {(21,178)
- 341,058
- 914,916
$ - $ 1,255,974
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EXHIBIT C-3

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Net Change in Fund Balances -- Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
{"SOA") are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
staternent of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital outlays during
the current period.

The depreciation of capital assets is not reported in the funds. This is the amount
of current depreciation on these assets.

The implementation of GASB 68 required that certain expenditures be de-expended
and recorded as deferred resource outflows. These contributions made after the
measurement date of 12/31/18 caused the change in the ending net position to
increase. Contributions made before the measurement date and during the 2019
fiscal year were also expended in the 2019 fiscal year and recorded as an increase
in net pension expense for the District. The District's proportionate share of the TMRS
pension expense on the plan as a whole had to be recorded as an expense. The
result of these adjustments is to decrease the change in net position by $7,977.

The implementation of GASB 75 required that certain expenditures be de-expended
and recorded as deferred resource outflows. These contributions made after the
measurement date of 12/31/18 caused the change in the ending net position to
increase. Contributions made before the measurement date and during the 2019
fiscal year were also expended in the 2019 fiscal year and recorded as an increase .
in net OPFEB expense for the District. The District's proportionate share of the OPEB
expense on the plan as a whole had to be recorded as an expense. The resi
of these adjustments is to decrease the change in net position by $2,790.

Change in Net Position -- Statement of Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

b 341,058

418,822

(279,371)

(7,977)

(2,790}

$ 469,742
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EXHIBIT D-1

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubhock, Texas

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2019

ASSETS

Current Assetls:

. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts-Receivable
Deposits

Total Current Assels

Fixed Assets:
Buildings & Improvements, net
Furniture & Equipment, net

Total Fixed Assels

Other Assets:
Net Pension Asset

Total Other Assets

Deferred Quiflows of Resources

Deferred Outflows - Pension
Deferred Outflows - OPER

LIABILITIES
Current Lisbilitiss
Accounts Payable
Non-current Liabiiities
Net OPEB Liability
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Defaerred-Inflows - Pension
Deferred Inflows - OPEB

Totai Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type
Activities--
Enterprise Funds

Utilities Funds

$ 46,621
49,180
50

95_,851

172,845

_ 53,582

226,427

38,903
38,903

$ 361,181

3 24,741
848

$__ 26589

$ 39,312

o a3ss
43.698

20,301
1,110
21,411

226,427
95,234

321,661
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EXHIBIT D-2

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO, 1

Lubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION--

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Operaiing Revenues

Water Revenue -

Sewer Revenue

Garbage Revenus
Reserve Charge Revenue
Roads '
Late Charges

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Salaries

Payroll Taxes

Employee Benefits

Tools & Supplies

Repairs & Maintenance
Utilities B
Sewer & Disposal Expense
Water Purchases

Dues, Fees & Subscriptions
Training & Travel

Rental Expense

Insurance

Depreciation

Other

Total Ogerating' Expenses
Operating Income (Loss) Before
Onerating Transfers

Non-Operating Revenues {(Expenses)

QOperating Transfers In
Gain on Sale of Assets

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income {Loss)
NET POSITION

Net Position, Begihning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type
Activities--
Enterprise Funds

Utilities Funds.

$ 168,274 . © ..
150,931..
102,910-
9,758
79,921
. 8,451 -
520,245 ©

02275

S A,273
130,543
3,011
29,475
41,088
202,634
121,783

1,233
© 3,179
1,155
35,5989
2,512

566,760 .

(%5,515)' .

77478

27,178

(1\8;33?)“ ‘

330,698 -
321,661
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EXHIBIT D-3

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NOG. 1

Lubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS..
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers
Paymaents to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities;
Qperating Transfers

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Non-Capital

Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital & Related Financing Aclivites:
Acquisition of Fixed Assets
Sale of Capital Assets
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital &
Related Financing Aclivites

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents--Beginning of Year
Cash & Cash Equivalents--End of Year

Reconciliaton of Operating income (Loss) to
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
{Increase} Decrease in Receivables
(Increase} Decrease in Net Pension Asset
{Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflows of Resources
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Liability
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Resource inflows
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating
. Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type
Activities--
Enterprise Funds
Utilities Funds
$ 511,997 . .-
(407,944)
(121,377)

{17.324)

27,178

27,178

(45:515)

35,599
. (8,248)
(5,491)
(11,192)
(1,874)"
(858)

20,255

 (17,324)
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1, Texas was organized
under the provisions of Section 59, Article 18, of the Constitution of Texas, as proved in
Chapter 25, General Laws enacted by the 39" Legislature at its Regular Session in 1225. The
District operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following
services as authorized by its charter: Public safety, streets and roads, sanitation, culture-
recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general admlnlstratlve services.
Other services include utilities operations.

- The Board of Directors, a five-member group constituting an on-going entity, is the level of

government which has governance responsibilities for the conserving, preserving, protecting,
recharging and prevention of waste of the Buffalo Springs Lake, as permitted by Chapter 52
of the Texas Water Code. The District currently receives funding only from local sources, but
must comply with the concomitant requirements of these funding source entities and some
state sources. However, the District is not included in any other governmental “reporting
entity” as defined in Section 2100, Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards, since Board members are elected by the public and have decision
making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to significantly
influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

The basic financial statements of the Lubbock County Water Control and improvement District
No. 1 have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United Sates of America (“GAAP") applicable to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board ("GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

1. The Reporting Entity

The District, for financial purposes, includes all of the funds and account groups relevant
to the operations of the Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1.
The financial statements presented herein do not include agencies which have been .
formed under applicable state laws or separate and distinct units of government apart from
the Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1.

The financial statements of the District include those of separately administered
organizations that are controlied by or dependent on the District. Control or dependence
is determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, funding and appomtment
of the respective governing board. .




LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 2
September 30, 2019

Note A; Summary of Significant Accounting Polices (Continued)

2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

a. Basis of Presentation

23

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the over-reporting of internal activities.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and

program revenues for each function of the District's governmental activities. Direct

expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,

therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does not

allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. Program revenues include

(a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by

the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not

classified as program revenues, including all of taxes, are presented as general

revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information
about the District’'s funds, with separate statements presented for each fund
category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds
are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund: This is the primary operating fund of the District. It accounts for all

financial resources of the District except those required to be accounted for in -
another fund.




LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 3
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies--Continued

In addition, the District reports the following fund types:

~24-

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises -
where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges or (b) where the
govemning body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. Operating
revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those
in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange

transactions or ancillary activities.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus. They are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred, regardiess of when the related
cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives {or
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange,
include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenues from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the

fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. The District considers all revenues reported in the
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days
after year-end. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes.
Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under
susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue
when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually
received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both
measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt,
claims, and judgments, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they
have matured. General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. Proceeds from general long-term debt and acquisitions

under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 4'
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Proprietary Fund Types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus utilizing the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned
and become measurable and expenses in the accounting period in which they are
incurred and become measurable. The fund equity is segregated into net
investment in capital assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position.

¢. Fund Balance Classification

Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been
placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District does
not currently have any restricted fund balances.

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General
Fund.

The District would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by
committed resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively spend unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other
classified funds.

3. Financial Statement Amounts

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The District has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand
deposits, short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from
the date of acquisition, and cash with fiscal agent.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid
investments purchased with maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

b. Investments

Investments for the District are reported at fair value. The District categorizes its fair
value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets. The State Treasurer’s Investment Pools are operated in accordance .

- with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported values of the pools are the
same as the fair value of the pool shares (Level 1 inputs). '
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. LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NG. 1

Lubbock, Texas ‘

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 5
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

¢. inventories and Prepaid ltems

The District records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase
method of accounting for inventory.

- Certain payments tc vendors reflect cost appiicable to future periods and are recorded
as prepaid items.

d. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical
cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the
“date of the denation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the assets’ lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000
is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated

useful lives:
: Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
infrastructure 30
Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Vehicles 5-15
Office Equipment and Furniture 315
Computer Eguipment 3

e. Receivable and Payable Balances

The District believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is

© provided in the financial statements to aveid the obscuring of significant components
by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those
balances.

" There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one
year of the period end.
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~LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 6
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

f.

Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers
hbetween funds. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as
appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided,

deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and

expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost,

charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a . -

reimburserment. All ofher interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In
and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers’ line on the

government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables. -
are netted and presented as a smgle ‘Internai Balances” line of the government-wide

statement of net position.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of
management's estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of 'Resources

' In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate

section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The City currently has two items which qualify for
reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement

_element; deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that

applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The District currently has two types of items which arise
under the accrual basis of accounting. These amounts are deferred and recognized-

- as an inflow of resources in the period when the amounts become availabie.

Pensions

~-For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and -

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information

“about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas County & District Retirement System

“ (TCDRS) and additions to/deductions from TCDRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been

determined on the same basis as they are reported by TCDRS. For this purpose, plan

- contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the
- employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds
- are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

investments are reported at fair value.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 7
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

j. Other Post-Employment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information-
about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas County & District Retirement System
{TCDRS) and additions to/deductions from TCDRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by TCDRS. For this purpose, plan
contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the
employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Note B: Compliance and Accountability

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures”, violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are
reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations:

Violations Action Taken
None Reported Not Applicable

Note C: Deposits and investments

The District's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository

~ contract. The depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the District's agent bank -
approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect District funds on a day-to-day
basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to -
the extent of the depository bank’s dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Caorporation -
("FDIC”) insurance.

Cash Deposits

At September 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the District's deposits (cash, certificates of
deposit, and interest bearing saving accounts included in temporary investments) was
-$1,423,324 and the bank balance was $1,457,204. The District's cash deposits at September
30 and throughout the year were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral, .
held by the District’s agent banik in the District’s name. :
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NOQ. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 8
September 30, 2019

Note C: Deposits and Investments (continued)

Investments

The District is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds investment
Act, to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the
following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable
investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable
stated maturity of porifolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity
allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and
capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit.

The Public Funds [nvestment Act ("Act”) requires an annual audit of investment practices.
Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial
statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports an
establishment of appropriate policies, the District adhered to the requirements of the Act.
Additionally, investment practices of the District were in accordance with local policies.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the District. These
include, with certain restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies, and the
State of Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) securities lending
program, (5} repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8)
investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and (10) commercial paper.

Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool)

The Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Public
Funds Investment Act, chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code (the “Act”), provide for
the creation of public funds investment pools through which political subdivisions and other
entities may invest public funds.

TexPool uses amortized cost to value portfolio assets and follows the criteria established by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 79 for use of amortized
cost.

Pursuant to subchapter G of chapter 404, the Comptroller of Public Accounts (the
“Comptroller’) administers the Texas Local Government Invesiment Pools (the “TexPool
Portfolios™) as public funds investment pools through the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust
Company (the “Trust Company”). The Trust Company is a special-purpose trust company -
authorized to receive, transfer, and disburse money and securities as provided by statute or
belonging to the state, agencies, and local political subdivisions and other organizations
created on behalf of the state or agency or political subdivision of the state. The Comptroller
is the sole officer, director, and shareholder of the Trust Company. .

The Comptrolier and the Trust Company have contracted with an administrator and
investment manager (“Investment Manager") for the TexPool Portfolios. TexPool invests in
U.S. Treasury and government agency securities, repurchase agreements, and cerfain
mutual funds.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 9
September 30, 2019

Note C: Deposits .and Investments (continued)

In accordance with the Act, the Comptroller has appointed the TexPool Investment Advisory
Board to advise with respect to TexPool. The Board is composed equally of participants in
the TexPool Portfolios and other persons who do not have a business relationship with the
TexPool Portfolios and are qualified to advise the TexPool Portfolios.

The TexPool portfolio is designed and managed to ensure that is maintains its AAAm rating
(or the equivalent by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The following
guidelines are followed by the Investment Manager to maintain the portfolio maturity
consistent with a stable net asset value per share; 1} The maximum remaining maturity of
any security or other investment acquired for the portfolio shall be 397 calendar days or less;
2) the portfolio maintains a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less; and 3) the portfolio
maintains a weighted average life of 120 days or less. Maturity limits are applied as defined
in GASB 79.

State Street Bank and Trust, the custodian designated by the Investment Manager provides
fund accounting services for TexPool and is responsible for marking-to-market the portfolio
holdings of TexPool on a daily basis. The shadow price is the net asset value per share of
TexPool, calculated using total investments measured at fair value at the calculation date.

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to
the following specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related
disclosures:

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized agencies are designed
to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the District was not significantly exposed
to credit risk.

b. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository
insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution's frust department or agent but not in the District’s name.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured,
are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty
or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the District’'s name. At year end,
the District was not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 10
September 30, 2019

Note C: Deposits and Investments (continued)

c. Concentration of Credif Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a
single issuer. At year end, the District was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. At year end, the District was not exposed to interest rate risk,

e. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
At year end, the District was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Note D: Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the period ended September 30, 2019, was as follows:

Governmental Balance Deletions/ Balance

Activities: 10-1-18 Additions  Reclassifications 9-30-19

Land $ 429,903 - - $ 429,903

Construction in Progress 9,022 88,336 - 97,358

Buildings&

Improvements 6,152,443 236,893 - 6,389,336

Furniture & Equipment 1,040, 864 93,594 (28.200) 1,106,258

Total Capital Assets $7.632,232 $418,823 $ (28,2000 $ 8022855

Less Accumulated

Depreciation:

Buildings&

Improvements $4,599,572 $ 206,198 - $4,805,770

Furniture & Equipment 809,398 73,173 (28,200} 854,371

Total Accumulated '
Depreciation $5.408.970 $279371 $ (28,200) $5.660.141

Net Capital Assets $2,223,262 $139452 S - $2,362,714

Depreciation was charged to funclions as foliows:

General Administration $ 59,641
Police and Safety 10,862
Parks . 148,881
Special Events 11,787
Streets 48,200

$ 279,371
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 11

September 30, 2019

Note D: Capital Assets (continued)

Business-Type
Activities:

Buildings & Improvements $ 559,832

Operating Equipment
Total Capital Assets

Less Accumulated
Depreciation:

Buildings&
Improvements
Operating Equipment
Total Accumuiated
Depreciation

Net Capital Assets

Note E: Long-Term Obligations

-392-

Balance Deletions/ Balance
10-1-18 Additions Reclassifications 9-30-19

$ - $ - $ 559,832

224,293 - - 224,293

$ 784,125 $ - $ - $ 784125
$ 367,141 $ 19,845 $ - $ 386,986
154 957 15,754 - 170,711

$ 522098 $ 35599 $ - $ 557697
$§ 262,027 $(35,599) b - $ 226428

Short term foans are accounted for through the applicable fund. General Fund proceeds from
loans (except those issued and retired during the current year) are shown in the financial
statements as Other Rescurces and principal payments as Other Uses. Enterprise fund loans
are shown in the appropriate fund.

The District owes Lubhock County for prior siection costs, $84,893, which is due in annual
installments of $14,149 for the next 7 years. This liability is reported in the governmental

funds.

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2019 are as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Increases = Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental Fund:
Due to County $ 99,042 $ - $ 14,149 $ 84,893 $14,149
Net Pension Liability (136,753) 31,009 64,024 (169,768) -
Total OPEB Liability 30,186 1,088 6,122 25150 -
Total $ (7,525) $32,005 $ 84,205 $ (59,725)
Business-Type Activities:
- Net Pension Liability $ (33,412) $ 5,158 $ 10,649 $ (38,903) -
~ Total OPEB Liability 5,244 185 1,043 4,388 -
Total $(28,168) $ 5,343 $ 11,692 $(34,517) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 12
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Plan

Plan Description

The District provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits for all of its non-temporary
employees through a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the statewide Texas
County and District Retirement System (TCDRS). TCDRS is an agent multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan. The Board of Trustees of TCDRS is responsible for the
administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system.
TCDRS, in the aggregate, issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a
calendar year basis. The CAFR is available at www.tcdrs.org, or is available upon written
request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-2034.

Benefits Provided

Plan provisions are adopted by the Board of Trustees, within the options available in the
Texas state statutes governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act). Members can retire at ages 60 and
above with 8 or more years of service, with 30 years of service regardless of age, or when
the sum of their age and years of services equals 75 or more. Members are vested after 8
years of service but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any
employer-financed benefit.

Employers may elect to provide other optional benefits. Prior service gives employees
monetary credit for time worked for an organization before it joined the system. Buybacks
allow current employees to re-establish a closed TCDRS account from previous service with
an employer. Partial lump-sum payments at retirement allow employees to withdraw part of
their TCDRS account balance as a lump sum at retirement with a reduced monthly benefit.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions fo the plan, with
interest, and employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is
adopted by the Board within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the
resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the District's commitment to
contribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum
of the employee’s accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to
a monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.

Annually, the District reviews the plan to determine benefit and contribution levels.
Employees covered by benefit terms

At December 31, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: -

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 8
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 40
Active employees _20

Total 63
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 13
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions

A combination of three elements funds each employer's plan: employee deposits, employer
contributions and investment income.

o The deposit rate for employees is 4%, 5%, 6% or 7% of compensation, as adopted
by the employer’s governing body.

e Participating employers are required, by law, to contribute at actuarially determined
rates, which are determined annually.

e |nvestment income funds a large part of the benefits employees earn.

The district's contribution rate is calculated annually on an actuarial basis, although the
employer may elect to contribute at a higher rate. The District contribution rate is based on
the TCDRS funding policy adopted by the TCDRS Board of Trustees and must conform with
the TCDRS Act. The employee contribution rates are set by the district and are currently
7%.

Employers have the option of paying more than the required contribution rate each year.
Extra contributions can help employers “pre-fund” benefit increases, such as cost-of-living
adjustment to retirees, and they can be used to help offset or mitigate future increases in the
required rate due to negative plan experience. There are two approaches for making extra
contributions: (a) paying an elected contribution rate higher than the required rate and (b)
making an extra lump-sum contribution to the employer account.

Administrative costs of TCDRS are financed through the system’s general reserves, which
are part of the Endowment Fund.

Employees for the District were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings
during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the District were 6.74% and 6.99% in
calendar years 2018 and 2019, respectively. The District's contributions to TCDRS for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 were $44,110, and were equal to the required
contributions.
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L UBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 14
September 30, 2019

Note F:  Pension Plan (continued)

Net Pension Liability

The District's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the
Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by
an actuarial vaiuation as of that date.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used for GASB Calculations:

The actuarial assumptions that determine the Total Pension Liability as of December 31,
2018 were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1,
2013 — December 31, 2016, except where required to be different by GASB 68. The key
assumptions used in the calcutation of the total pension liability are as follows:

Valuation Timing

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Recognition of economic/demographic

Gains or losses

Recognition of assumption changes

Or inputs
Asset Valuation Method
Smoothing period
Recognition method
Corridor
Inflation
Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Cost-of-Living Adjustments

Retirement Age
Turnover

Mortality

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated on a calendar
year basis as of December 31, two years prior to the end of the fiscal
year in which the contributions are reported.

Entry Age Normal

Straight-line amortization over Expected Working Life

Straight-line amortization over Expected Working Life

5 year

Non-asymptotic

None

2.75%

Same as funding valuation; See Below

8.10% (Gross of administrative expenses)

Cost-of-Living Adjustments for Lubbock County Water Control and
Improvement District #1 are not considered to be substantively
automatic under GASB 68. Therefore, no assumption for future cost-
of-living adjustments is included in the GASB calculation. No
assumption for future cost-of-living adjustments is included in the
funding valuation.

Same as funding valuation: See Below

Same as funding valuation: See Below

Same as funding valuation: See Below
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 15
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Fian (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used for Funding Valuation:

Economic Assumptions

TCDRS system-wide economic assumptions:

Real Rate of return 5.25%
inflation 2.75%
Long-term investment return 8.00%

The assumed long-term investment return of 8% is net after investment and administrative

- expenses. Itis-assumed returns will equal the nominal annual rate of 8% for calculating the
actuarial accrued liability and the normal cost contributicn rate for the retirement plan of each
participating employer.

The annual salary increase rates assumed for individual members vary by length of service
- and by entry-age group. The annual rates consist of a general wage inflation component of
- 3.25% (made up of 2.75% inflation and 0.5% productivity increase assumptions) and a merit,
- promotion-and longevity component that on average approximates 1.6% per year for a career
employee.

Employer-specific economic assumptions:
Growth in membership 0.0%
Payroll Growth 3.25%

© The payrolt growth assumption is for the aggregate covered payroll of an employer.

Demographic Assumptions

TCDRS system-wide demographic assumptions:

- Replacement of Terminaied Members — New employees are assumed to replace any
terminated members and have similar entry ages. :

‘Disability — Members who become disabled are eligible to commence benefit payments
regardless of age. Rates of disability are in a custom table based on TCDRS experience.

Mortality rates for active members were based on 90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee
. 'Mortality Table for males and 90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for
© females, projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014. Mortality rates for
.. setvice retirees, beneficiaries, and non-depositing members were based on 130% of the RP-~
.~ 2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and 110% of the RP-2014 Healthy
- Annuitant ‘Mortality Table for females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Uitimate -
- scale after 2014.. Mortality rates for disabled retirees were based on 130% of the RP-2014
Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for males and 115% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant
Mortality Table for females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after
2014,




-37-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 16
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Note F: Pension Plan (continued)
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Family Composition - For current retirees, beneficiary information is supplied by TCDRS. .-
‘Far-purposes. of calculating the Survivor Benefit for current depositing and non-depositing
members ;- male members are assumed to have a female beneficiary who is three years.
. younger. Femiale members are assumed fo have a male beneficiary who is three years older,

Employer-spesific demographic assumptions:

- OtherTerminations of Employment - The rates of assumed future termination from aciive -
. participation in.the plan for reasons other than death, disability or retirement vary by length
. of senvice; entrysage group {(age at hire) and gender. No termination after eligibility for

retirement is assumed,

- Withdrawals - Members who terminate may either elect fo ieave their account with TCODRS -
- or withdraw their funds. The probability that a member elects a withdrawal varies by length
- of service and vesting schedule. For nor-depositing members who are not vested 100%

are assumed to elect a withdrawal.

The long-term expecled rate of return on TCDRS assets is determined by adding-expected -

_inflation to:expected long-term real retums, and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. -

- “The capital market assumptions and information shown below are provided by TCDRS
“investment consultant, Cliffwater LLC. The numbers shown are based on January-2019 -

information for a 10-year time horizon.

o Note that-the- valuation assumption for long-term expected return is re-assessed at a
... minimum of every four years, and is set based on a 30-year time horizon; the most recent
.. analysis was performed in 2017. See Milliman's TCDRS Investigation of Experlence report .

for the period January 1, 2013 —~ December 31, 2016 for more details.

Geometric Real

Target Rate of Retum
. - Asgset Class Allocation {Expected minus inflation)- "~ -

US Eqguities ' 10.50% 5.40%

Private Equity 18.00% 8.40%

Globai Equities 2.50% 3.70% R Y NI
Tnternational Equities-Developed 10.00% 5.40% ' :
International Equities-Emerging 7.00% 5.90%
Investment-Grade Bonds - 3.00% 1.60%

Strategic Credit - 12.00% 4.39%

Direct Lending 11.00% 7.95%

Distressed Debt 2.00% 7.20%

REIT Equities 2.00% 4.15%

Master Limited Partherships 3.00% 5.35%

Private Real Estate Partnerships &.00% 6.30%

Hedge Funds _ 13.00% 3.90%

Total - 164.00%

Lt e
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 17
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Plan {continued)

Discount Rate ' o
The discount rafe is the s:ngle rate of return that, when applied to all prOJected benef t

payments results in an actuarial present value of pro;ected beﬂeﬂt payments equal to the e

sum of the following:

. 1. The actuarial present value of benefit payments projected to be made in future periods: .-

i which (a) the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position is projected (o be

-, greater than the benefit payments. that are projected te be made in that period-and (b} -2 =

| s pension: plan-assets up 1o that point are expected {o be invested using a strategy. o -

achieve the long-term rate of return; calculated using the long-term experted m‘te ef:_ T

return on pension plan investments. .
2. The actuarial:present value of projected benefit payments not included in (1), caiculated
using the municipal bond rate o e

Therefore, if plan mveotments in-a glven future year are greater than pFOJected beneff- *

-payments in that year and are invested-such that they are expected to earn the long-term R

- rate of return, the discount rate applied to projected benefit payments in that year should be

- -the long-term expected rate of return on plan investiments. If future years exist where thisis - .-
+:notthe case, then an index rate reflecting the yield on-a 20-year, tax-exempt mum(;lpal borzd‘ RERNRS

- should be used to discount the. pro;ected benefit paymems for those years.

“In-order to:determine the dascount rate used by the District, an alternative method was used D

- to determine the sufficiency of the fiduciary net position in all future years. The alternative

. method reflects the funding requirements under the District's funding policy and the quai. e
reguirements under the “!(,DRS Act A

1. . TCDRS has & fundmg po!lcy where the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) ehali T

. be amortized as a level percent of pay over 20-year closed layered periods.
- 2. 7Under the TCDRS Act, the employer is legally required to make the contribution specified
in the funding policy.

“The District’s assets are projected to exceed its accrued iiabilities in-20 years or less.

:\When this point is reached, the employer is still required to contribute at least the normal
cost.

© 4. Any increased cost due to the adoptlon of a COLA is required to be furnded over a penod@ SR

of 15 years, if applicable.

- «Since the projected fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay projected benefit = = '~
.. payments im.all future years, the discount rate for purposes of calculating the total pension = =+~

- liability and net pension liability of the employer is equal to the long-term assumed rate of -~

. return on.investments. This long-term assumed rate of return should be net of investment’ o o
©.~-expenses,:but gross of administrative expenses for GASB 68 puiposes. Therefere, 2

. discount rate:of -8.10% has been used. This rate reflects the long-term assumed rate of
- return on assets Tor funding purposes of 8.00%, net of all expenses, increased by 0.10% 0~ °
ke gross of adminisirative expenses. S
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1. -
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 18
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Plan {continued)

Change in the Net Pension Liabifity

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

: (a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balance at 12/31/17 $ 1,598,928 § 1,769,003 § (170,165)
Changes for the year: Lo
Service cost - ‘ 109,538 109,538
Interest T 131,744 131,744
Change of benefit terms ‘ )
Efiect of economic/demographic gains or losses -~ - (213,088) (213,088)
Changes of assumptions \ ' - -
Refund of contributions S (104,991) (104,991) -
- Contributions - employer o - 50,738 (50,738)
 Confributions - employee o - 52,695 (52,695) .
Net investment income S - (33,670) 33,670
‘Benefil payments, including refunds of cmployee_conlrii;ulions , (62,249) (62,249} -
Administrative expense ‘ : - {(1,340) 1,340 . .
Other changes _ : S - (1,723 L7233
Net changes {139,046) {100.540) {38.506)
~ Balance at 12/31/18 _ 0% 1,455,882 § 1668553 % (208,671)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following. presents the net pension liability of the District, calculated using the discount

‘rate of 8.10%, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated -
- using a discount-rate that is 1-percentage-paint lower (7. 10%) or 1-percentage-point hlgher S

{9.10%) than the current rate: , :

1% Decrease in 1%4 Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(7.10%) (8.10%) (9 10%)
District's net pension : o .
liability/{asset) $ (45,147) § (208,671) % (349,047

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

- Detailed information about the pension pian’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a-. '
:separately-issued TCDRS ﬂnanclai report. That report may be obtained on the lntemet at
www.fedrs. conl. : R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 19
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the district recognized pension expense of $54 288,

At September 30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and- deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the followmg sources: :

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual
economic experience $ 20,737 § 142,059
Changes in actuarial assumptions 3 11,578 § -
Difference between projected and actual :
investment earnings 5 114,926
Contributions subsequent to the measure .
date December 31, 2016 _ $ 32,939 §$ -

Total $ 180,180 § 142,059

$32,939 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from . -
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension.
expense as follows:

Year ended Dec 31;

2019 $ {9,264)

2020 {44,549)
2021 24,132
2022 34,863
2023 -
Thereafter _ -
Total 3 5,182
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 20
September 30, 2019

Note G: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

1.

Plan Description

The District participates in the retiree Group Term Life program for the Texas County &
District Retirement System (TCDRS), which is a statewide, multiple-employer, public
employee retirement system. The TCDRS Group Term Life program has been
determined to be an unfunded OPEB plan as the GTL fund does not meet the
requirements of a trust under Paragraph 4b of GASB 75, because the assets of the GTL
fund can be used to pay active GTL benefits which are not part of the OPEB plan. For
GASB 75 purposes, the OPEB plan is not a cost sharing plan, so the annual benefit
payments are treated as being equal to the employer’s actual retiree GTL contributions
for the year.

Benefits Provided

o Al full- and part-time non-temporary employees participate in the plan,
regardless of the number of hours they work in a year and are eligible for the
TCDRS pension plan., Only employers that have elected participation in the
retiree Group Term Life program are included in the OPEB plan. '

e The plan provides a $5,000 post-retirement death benefit to beneficiaries of
service refirees and disability retirees of employers that have elected
participation in the retiree GTL program.

The OPEB benefit is a fixed $5,000 lump-sum benefit. A

e No future increases are assumed in the $5,000 benefit amount
Benefit terms are established under the TCDRS Act. Participation in the retiree
GTL program is optional and the employer may elect to opt out of (or opt into)
gcoverage as of Jan. 1 each year.

At the December 31, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following employees
were covered by the benefit terms: _

Inactive employees ot beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

Total

S B oy

Contributions

Contributions made to the retiree GTL Program are held in  the GTL Fund. The GLT
fund does not meet the requirements of a trust under Paragraph 4b of GASB 75, as the |
assets of the GTL fund can be used to pay active GTL benefits which are not part of the
OPEB plan.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 21
September 30, 2019

Note G: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

The District's contribution rate for the retiree GTL program is calculated annually on an
actuarial basis, and is equal to the cost of providing a one-year death benefit equal to
$5,000.

Contribution Rates

2018 2019

District 0.40% 0.22%

Current Fiscal Year Employer Contributions $ 2,189

4.  Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPER liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions:

Additional Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Valuation Date December 31, 2018
Actuzrial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method
Recognition of economic/demographic

Gains or losses Straight-line amortization over Expected Working Life
Recognition of assumption changes
Qr inputs Straight-line amortization over Expected Working Life
Asset Valuation Method Does not apply
Inflation Does not apply
Salary increases Does not apply
investment Rate of Return (Discount Rate) 4.10%

20 Year Bond GO Index published by
bondbuyer.com as of December 27,

2018
Cost-of-Living Adjustments ‘ Does not apply
Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid

through the Pension Trust and
accounted for under reporting
requirements under GASB Statement

: No. 68

Mortality rates — depositing members 90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee

’ Mortality Table for males and 90% of
the RP-2014 Active Employee
Mortality Table for females, projected -
with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate
scale after 2014.

Mortality rates — service retirees 130% of the RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Mortality Table for males
and 110% of the RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-
2014 Ultimate scale after 2014,
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 22
September 30, 2019

Note G: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

Mortality rates — disabled retirees 130% of the RP-2014 Disabled
Annuitant Mortality Table for males
and 115% of the RP-2014 Disabled
Annuitant Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-
2014 Ultimate scale after 2014

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total OPEB liability as of December 31, 2018
were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2013-
December 31, 2016, except where required to be different by GASB 75. '

5, Discount Rate

The TCDRS GTL program is treated as unfunded OPEB plan because the GTL trust
covers both actives and retirees and the assets are not segregated for these groups.
Under GASB 75 (paragraph 155), the discount rate for an unfunded OPEB plan should
be based on 20-year tax-exempt AA or higher Municipal Bonds. Therefore, a discount
rate of 4.10% based on the 20 Year Bond GO Index published by bondbuyer.com is
used as of the measurement date of December 31, 2018.

6.  Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following schedule shows the impact of the Total OPEB Liability if the discount rate
used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the discount rate that was used (4.10%)
in measuring the Total OPEB Liability. Note that the healthcare cost trend rate does
not affect the Total OPEB Liability, so sensitivity to the healthcare cost trend rate is not
shown.

1% Decrease in Discount Rate 1% Increase in
Discount Rate {3.10%) {4.10%) Discount Rate {5.10%)
Total OPEB Liability $ 35,247 $ 29,536 $ 25,085
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 23
September 30, 2019

Note G Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

7.

44

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred

Inflows of Resources Related to OPEBs

At September 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $29,536 for total OPEB liabiiity.

The total OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2018 by an actu

valuation as of that date.

arial

Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation — The following were changes to the
actuarial assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the Total OPEB

liability since the prior measurement period:

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the Total OPEB

liaility during the measurement period.

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of

$5,474.

Change in the Total OPEB Liablility

Balance at 12/31/17
Changes for the year:

Service cost
Interest
Change of benefit terms

Effect of economic/demograpbic experience

Changes of assumptions

Benefit payments, including refunds of employes contributions
Other changes

Net changes

Balance at 12/31/18

Total OPEB
Liability
(a)

b 35,430

1,942
1,282

(5,289)
(3,603)
(226)

_ (5,894)
$ 29536
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 24
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Note G: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

45~

. At‘December 31,:2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
_ ' of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual
actuarial expetiences $ 3,238 $ 4,533
. Changes in actuarial assumptions $ 1,185 $ 3,088
Difference between projected and actuai ‘
Investment earnings ' $ - 3 -

Changes in proportion and difference batween
The employer's contributions and the
 Proportionate share of contributions 3 - $ -

Total as of Dec. 31, 2017 measurement date $ 4,423 3 7.621
Contributions paid to TCDRS subsequent to the
measurement date $ 1508 -
" Total as of fiscal year-end $ 5931 $ 7621

. The net -amounts of the employer's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources

related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended Decermber 31; OPEB Expense Amount
2019 $ (534)
2020 (534)
2021 (534)
2022 (534)
2023 (534)
Thereafter 528

Noie H: Transfers

:: The following i$ a summary of District interfund transfers for the year ended'September 30,

2019:
Transfer from Amount Transfer To Explanation
- General Fund $ 45,160 Special Revenue Fund Supplement speciai events

‘General Fund - . $ 27178 Enterprise Fund Supplement enterprise activities
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 25
September 30, 2019

Note I. Litigation
From time to time the District is party to various legal proceedings which occur in the District’s
operations. These legal proceedings are not expected to have an adverse impact on the
operations or affected funds of the District. -

Note J;: Risk Managemeant

The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts, theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; business interruptions; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses;
natural disaster; and empioyee health, dental and accidental benefits. Commercial msurance
is purchased for claims arising from such matters.
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EXHIBIT E-1
LUBBOCK WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
‘ GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2019
General Fund
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Gate Revenue $ 1663200 $ 1,711,148 $ 47,858
Lot L.ease Revenue 184,100 186,064 1,964
Rental Revenue 59,000 51,886 (7,114)
Interest Revenue 2,100 3,203 1,103
Other Operating Revenue 25,250 78,647 53,397
Total Revenues : 1,933,740 2,030,948 97.208
Expenditures
Current
Salaries 545,000 535,940 9,060
Payroll Taxes 16,250 12,240 4,010
Employee Benefits 128,750 127,083 1,867
Tools and Supplies ‘ 44,500 43,039 1,461
Repairs & Maintenance ‘ 128,000 121,101 6,899
Utilities 193,250 189,220 4,030
Office Supplies 18,350 14,999 3,351
Printing and Postage 9,327 6,850 2,477
Advertising and Public Relations 6,250 5,744 506
Dues, Fees and Subscriptions 3,557 2,926 631
Training and Travel 15,100 14,382 718
Accounting and Legal 30,000 28,500 1,500
Election Expense 4,500 3,351 1,149
Contracted Services 19,500 18,126 1,374
Rental Expense 16,750 14,728 2,022
Bank Fees and Charges 25,350 24,515 835
Insurance 31,000 28,654 2,346
Cther 17,500 13,332 4,168
Capital Qutlay 420,000 418,822 1,178
Total Expenditures 1,672,934 1,623,552 49,382
Other Financing Sources (lses)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - 6,000 6,000
Qperating Transfers In {Out) (75,000} (72,338) 2,662
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (75,000} {66,338) 8,662
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 185,806 341,058 165,252

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 914,916 914,916 -

Fund Balance, End_of Year $ 1100722 $ 1255974 $ 155,252
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LUBBOCK WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NG. 1
Lubbock, Texas

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

AND RELATED RATIOS - TCDRS

{unaudited)

~ Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost

Interest (on the Total OPEB Liability)

Effect of plan changes

Fffect of assumption changes or inputs

Effect of economic/demographic (gaing) or losses

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liahility - Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)

Pensionable covered payroll

Net OPEB Liability/(asset) as % of covered payroll
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EXHIBIT E-3

Measurement Year Ended September 30,

2018 2017

$ 1,942 2,066
1,282 1,080

(3,603) 1,579

(5,289) 4,318
(226) (228)

(5,894) 8,815

35,430 26,615

$ 29,536 35,430
$ 836,976 759,179
4.64% 4.67%

Note: Only two yéars of data is presented in accordance with GASB #75, paragraph 245, "The information

for ali periods for the 10-year schedules that are required to be presented as required supplementary
information may not be available initially. In these cases, during the transition period, that information

should be presented for as many years as are available. The schedules should not include information
that is not rmeasured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement.”
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EXHIBIT E-5
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

September 30, 2019

Schedule of Pension Contributions — TCDRS

Valuation Timing

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method
Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Changes in Assumptions and
Methods Reflected in the Schedule
of Employer Contributions*

Changes in Plan Provisions
Reflected in the Schedule of
Employer Contributions*

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated on a calendar
year basis as of December 31, two years prior to the end of the fiscal
year in which the confributions are reported.

Entry Age
Level percentage of payroll, closed

0.0 years (based on contribution rate calculated in 12/31/2018
valuation)

5-year smoothed market
2.75%

Varies by age and service, 4.9% average over career including
inflation.

8.00%, net of administrative and investment expenses, mcludmg
inflation

Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to
commence receiving benefit payments based on age. The average
age at service retirement for recent retirees is 61.

130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and
110% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014,

2015: New inflation, mortality and other
assumptions were reflected
2017: New mortality assumptions were reﬂected

2015: No changes in plan provisions were reflected

in the Schedule

2016: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule
2017: New Annuity Purchase Rates were reflected for benefits earned
after 2017. '

2018: No changes in ptan provisions were reflected in the Schedule.

*Only changes that affect the benefit amount and that are effective 2015 and later are shown in the Notes to

" Schedule,
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
September 30, 2019

Schedule of OPEB Contributions — TCDRS

Valuation Timing

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Recognition of economic/demographic
gains or losses
Recognition of assumption changes
or inputs
Asset Valuation Method
Inflation
Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Cost-of-Living Adjustment

Disability

Mortality
Depositing members

Service retirees, beneficiaries and
non-depositing members

Disabled retirees

Retirement

Other Termination of Employment

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated on a calendar
year basis as of December 31, two years prior to the end of the fiscal
year in which the contributions are reported.

Entry Age Normal

Straight-line amortization over Expected Working Life
Straight-Line amortizafion over Expected Working Life
Does ﬁot apply
Does not apply
Does nof apply

4.10% .
20 Year Bond GO Index published by bondbuyer.com as of
December 27, 2018

Does not apply

Members who -become disabled are eligible to commence benefit
payments regardless of age. Rates of disability are in a custom table
based on TCDRS experience.

890% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for males and
90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Uitimate scale after 2014,

130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and
110% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014,

130% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for males
and 115% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for
females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale
after 2014,

Members eligible for service retirement are assumed to retire at rates
based on age and gender,

The rate of assumed future termination from active participation in the
plan for reasons other than death, disability or retirement vary by
length of service, entry-age group (age at hire) and gender. No
termination after eligibility for retirement is assumed.
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-54-

EXHIBIT F-1

§90°0€8'L ¢ 150°GLL S 688°/6 $ Lv¥'izs ¢ 6vRvy § 286922 $ 1¥e'wse $

Ze9'9l L2’ 68. 218 6L Y6y 8¥6'S Il Te)
FOF0¢ - G569 g51°1L 0eR'y £10'9 L0821 aoueInsu|
SLS've - - - - - S1L5'vE sabieys pue 5224 jyueg
L06'LL - - AN gie'el - zse'l asuadxg [ejusy
ozi'el - - - - 09g'€ 99.'vL $30/AU9S pajaenuoD
Lge'e - - - - - LGE'E asuadxg uonoa|g
005'e2 - - - - - p0s'se [eBa pue Bununoody
208'GL - 81 £eZ'L - sz 1GE'7) [oAes) pue Bulues}
0L2'e - e - - £or gOr'zZ suopdiosgng pue sea4 ‘seng
80¢'sZ - 80¢'6Z - - - - sesuadx3 [BUCHOWOIS 18
684'GE - G¥0'0¢ - - - ¥rL'G suoe|ay dland pue Buisiesapy
XA 662 a4 - - - (Xelee] abeisod pue Bunuud
66617} yel'e - - - . - 598'LL ‘ ss||ddng 2230
£g2'L2) - - £8/°12L - - - S8SRUdING JOYepA
¥£9'20Z - - ¥£9'202 - - - asuadxy [esodsi( g Jomes
661°1€2 €8 168 880'1L¥ 066'2L) 956°C L0g8'zL saIIN
125164 9LL'VZ 1G6 §.¥'62 999'85 l8l'9z zev'llL souBUBUE puE Sileday
850'9Y 6112 g 110'e 6S1'62 919°2 G80'v sa|ddng pue sjoo
BZ6'¥ES 690'ZF I 682°2¢ 178121 gLl'e9l T 1T8GLL ¥GT'681 sesuadxy pejefey pue sSLE[ES |ejol
GEE'19L 802'cZ £er'o 828'.2 l2l'8e 06.'G¢S 1GE'6T sjysuag sakojdwiz
6E6'¢l 1662 STAY €L2') 6ZH'T 6LY'Y L¥¥'C _ soxe} |joiied
G59'659 $ 606'GLL $ ovrie $ 6/2'26 $ £96'9Zl $ zTl9'sel $ 9S¥'/5L ¢ ssleles

[elol ERIIVELS sjuang AN S} 20]|0d SAHRASIUILPY
Jawosny [ewadg

810Z ‘0¢ lequiaidas papudg ses A au o4
AHO9ALYD ANV INIFWLHYAAT A9 SIHNLIANTSXT 40 IINAIHIS

SEXS} "ooqqn
L "ON 121810 INFWIACHANI ANV TOHLINOD HILVA ALNNOT HO20gdnT



55

EXHIBIT F-2

292°912 $

169°2€1L'C ¢ 0.T°E9l g 0£g'01) ¢ £¥i9l9 ¢ £/9'199 g 906°68¢ B

zee'le ¥56°L 6%/ 589°L S0S°L ore’l 5G.°6L

/6.'8¢2 - gie 65/ Z5L'Y 860°9 jorA A1

rA LAY - - - - - FATAIN

£S'eT - - SH0'8 9L0'vL - ZBEL

£94°CL - - - - 080'¢ L0101

Lse'e - - - - - 15e'e

S65°81 - - - - - 56591

AR AN - - £LY - - $82°2

€567 - - - - Z06 LE0'Z

S0¥'ZF - SOV'EP - - - -

g9zo'/L - acFLL - - - 8819

#96'Q Rel L'l - - - LOG 2

96142 0¥Q'Z - - - - 254'62

PEG'GLL - - FE5GLL - - -

25¢'%0Z - - 86507 - - -

2LE'0PT - 0¥ Siv'BY LZe'S.1 8/Z'L /88°¢1

2/6'112 5L1°L 608 091'6¥ 5G8'8LL ope'le 5.8°¢€1

LBS PG £6/ £ae iS¥'L 82r'9e 9.8'% £85'y

716'190°1L £10'081 ALY LTV'6LL SPE'iLE JAZAVNAY 080°L6 L

80¥° /02 0£o's? TES'6 9F0'EE 955°04 jgl'ge GE5'0E

69F'8L 8L0°¢ 329 62’z voz'y 96%'Z 8¥.'9

L18'6¢8 $ §98'zzl $ IPS'Ty $ sol'eyl & £96'9¢T $§ ¥8G'8El $ 164°¢Sl $
2301 ERIIVETS SETE] AN B 23110d QAFRASILILLDY

Jawoisnn [eroadg

LTON LOIMLSIQ INSWISACH AN GNV TOHLINGD HELVAM ALNNOD X088

810T ‘0t Jequialdag papul Jes A syl 103
AHODITLYD ANV INJNILHYLEA A STANLIANISNZ 40 ITINAZHOS

SEX2 ], “9o0gdn

FRUIO

anUEINsU]

ssbleyn pue sea4 yUEQ
asuadxg [2usy

SOOIAIRG PaORIUCT

asuadxg uoisels

1ebo pue Bununoooy

{enei| pue Bujulel}
suonduosgng pue sse4 ‘sang
sesuadxT [BUOOWIGE 193ii(]
suoneley ajand pue Buisiienpy
afieisod pue Supuud
sanddng 2410

SOSBYIN 21BN

osuadxg |esodsiq 3 Jameg
U EHUD

eouBURIURY Pue siedey
sa)ddng pue sjoc )

sasuadxg pojRlay pue sSUBES [Rj0 )

s)yeuag saioidiug
saxe} lolied
ssilejen



i~ — — _.‘_

e, S s T T T
‘ : N v - . : "

e, B I T T T e T T e T i N N N N e T
. E / SN AT ¢ ; ; I . : A E ] i i : i : fo o ; i

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019



ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019




LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Exhibit

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Annual Filing Affidavit

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required
Supplementary Information)

Basic Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position A-1
Statement of Activities B-1
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet-Governmentat Funds C-1
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position C-1R
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds C-2
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Activities C-3
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position D-1
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net Position D-2
Statement of Cash Flows D-3

Notes to the Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

General Fund E-1
Schedule of Changes in NPL and Related Ratios — TCDRS E-2
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability — TCDRS E-3
Schedule of Pension Contributions — TCDRS E-4
Schedule of OPEB Contributions — TCDRS E-5
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Expenditures by Department - 2019 F-1
Schedule of Expenditures by Department - 2018 F-2

Page

Number

13
14

15

17

18
19

20
21
22

47
48
49
50
51
52

54
55




INTRODUCTORY SECTION

[UPU — LR N p— St - st e et e . e —



e, -

e, -

ANNUAL FILING AFFIDAVIT

THE STATE OF TEXAS 5530000

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK COWCID 1

(Duly Authorized District Representative)

of the

(Name of District)

Hereby swear, or affirm, that the District named above has reviewed, approved and filed at a

meeting of the board of Directors of the Water District on the day of

20 , a copy of its annual audit report of the fiscal year or period ended

in the District office, located at

(Address of District)
The annual filing affidavit and the attached copy of the annual audit report are being

submitted to the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission in satisfaction of all
annual filing requirements within Section 49.194 of the Texas Water Code.

Date , 20 . By

(Signature of District Representative)

{(Name and Title of District Representative)

Sworn to and subscribed to before me this day of .20

{Signature of Notary)
(SEAL)

Commission expires on , 20 . Notary Public in the State of Texas.
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Terry & King, CPAs, P.C.

5707 114t Street
P.0O. Box 93550 Randel J. Terry, CPA
Lubbock, TX 79493-3550 Ryan R. King, CPA

Telephone - (806) 698-8858 — Fax — (866) 288-6490

Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements

Board of Directors

Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1
9999 High Meadow Road

Lubbock, TX 79404

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lubbock County
Water Control and Improvement District No. 1, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
errof. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order fo design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred fo above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lubbock County Water Control and
Improvement District No. 1, as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

-

Members American [nstitute of Cenified Public Accountants and the Texas Sociely of Cerlified Public Accountants

(CPA,

The CPA. Never Underestimate The Value@
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Other fMatters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and pension/OPEB schedules identified as
Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence o express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1's basic financial statements.
The accompanying other schedules listed in the table of contents as Other Supplementary Information
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. This information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this information is fairly -

stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Respectfully submitted,

;. .
Terry & King, CPAs

l.ubbock, Texas
February 17, 2020
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

QOur discussion and analysis of the Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement
District No. 1’s financial performance provides an overview of the District’s financial
activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. Please read this in conjunction with
the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The District’s net position increased as a result of this year’s operations. While net
position of our business-type activities decreased by $18, 337 net position of our
governmental activities increased by $469,742.

e During the year, the District had expenses that were $490,920 less than the
$2,089,676 generated in revenues for governmental programs.

e In the District’s business type activities, revenues increased $4,399 to $520,245 (or
1%) while operating expenses decreased $91,086 to $565,760.

e The General fund reported a surplus this year of $368,236 prior to inter-fund
transfers to other funds of $27,178.

e The resources available for appropriation were $97,208 more than budgeted for the
General Fund. Expenditures for the General Fund were less than the budgeted
amounts by $49,382.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the District’s finances. Fund
financial statements start on page 15. For governmental activities, these statements tell
how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the District’s operations in more detail
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the District’s
most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about
activities for which the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those
outside of the government.




Reporting the District as a Whole -- The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities

Our analysis of the District as a whole begins on page 6. One of the most important
questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District as a whole better off or
worse as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its
activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include a/l assets
and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses
are taken into account regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in it. You can think
of the District’s net position—the differences between assets and liabilities—as one
way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the District’s net position is one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-
financial factors, however, such as changes in the condition of the District’s
infrastructure, to assess the overall health of the District.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the District
into two kinds of activities:

o Governmental activities — Most of the District’s basic services are reported here,
including general administration, police and safety, parks, special events, and
customer service. Gate revenues, special event revenues, lot leases and rentals,
and grants and contributions finance most of these activities.

¢ Business-type activities — The District charges a fee to customers to help it cover
the cost of certain services it provides. The District’s utility services are
reported here.

Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds — Fund Financial Statements

Our analysis of the District’s major funds begins on page 10. The fund financial statements
begin on page 15 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds—not
the District as a whole. At times the District may establish other funds to help it control
and manage money for particular purposes, such as special projects or to show that it is
meeting legal responsibilities for using certain Federal or State grants. Currently the
District’s governmental funds consist of the General Fund and a special revenue fund to
account for special projects. The District’s two kinds of funds — governmmental and
proprietary ~ use different accounting approaches.




e Governmental funds—Most of the District’s basic services are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds
and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
The Governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
District’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental
aciivities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities)
and governmental fiznds in reconciliation on Exhibits C-1R and C-3.

e Proprietary funds—When the District charges customers for the services it
provides—whether to outside customers or to other units of the District—these
services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported
in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities. In fact, the District’s enterprise funds (a component of
proprietary funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information,
such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The District’s combined net position was $4,117,220. Our following analysis focuses on
the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the District’s total
primary government.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
Net position. The District's combined net position was $4,117,220 at September 30, 2019. (See Table A-1).

Table A-1
Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1's Net Position

Total
Primary Government
Percentage
September 30, 2019  September 30, 2018 Change
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,423,324 1,080,458 31%
Accounts Receivable 49,180 40,932 20%
Deposits 50 50 0%
Total current assets: 1,472,554 1,131,440 30%
Noncurrent assets:
Net Pension Asset 208,671 170,165 23%
Construction in Progress 97,358 9,022 979%
Land 429,903 429,903 0%
Buildings & Improvements 6,049,168 6,712,275 4%
Less accumulated depreciation,
buildings & improvements (5,192,758} (4,966,713) 5%
Furniture & Equipment 1,330,551 1,265,157 5%
Less accumulated depreciation,
furniture & equipment (1,025,083) {964,355} 6%
Total noncurrent assets 2,797,812 2,655,454 5%
Total Assets 4,270,366 3,786,894 13%
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Qutflows - Pension & OPEB 186,110 102,112 82%
Total Deferred Cutflows of Resources 186,110 102,112 82%
Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable 68,271 73,105 -7%
Renter Deposits 1,651 3,005 -47%
Unearned Revenue 5,226 4,719 11%
Total current liabilities 75,148 80,919 -7%
Long-term liabilities:
Total OPEB Liability 29,536 35,430 -17%
Due within one year 14,149 14,149 0%
" Due in more than one year 70,744 84,893 -17%
Total long-term liabilities 114,429 134,472 -156%
Total Liabilities 189,577 215,391 -12%
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - Pension 149,679 7,800 1819%
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 149,679 7.800 1819%
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,589,141 2,485,289 4%
Unrestricted 1,628,079 1,180,526 29%
Total Net Position 4,117,220 3,665,815 12%

The $1,528,079 of unrestricted net position represents resources available to fund the programs
of the District next year.



Net Position of the District as a whole, increased 12% ($4,117,220 compared to
$3,665,815). Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance
day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling
legislation, or other legal requirements - changed from $1,180,526 to $1,528,079.

Table A-2

Changes in Lubbock Cdunty Water Contrel and Improvement District No. 1's Net Position

Total
Primary Government
Percentage
2019 2018 Change
Program Revenues: '

Charges for Services 2,336,007 2,286,087 2%
General Revenues:

Lot Lease Revenue 186,064 179,877 3%

investment Earnings 3,203 1,470 118%

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 6,000 120,151 -95%

Other Operating Revenue 78,647 79,381 -1%
Total Revenues 2,609,921 2,667,866 -2%

General Administration 417,436 398,137 5%

Police and Safety 240,504 227,325 8%

Parks 599,139 897,495 -33%

Special Events 110,280 122,776 ~10%

Customer Service 225,397 165,398 36%

Utility Activities 565,760 656,846 -14%
Total Expenses 2,158,516 2,467,977 -13%
Excess (Deficiency) Before

Other Resources, Uses &

Transfers 451,405 199,889 126%
Other Resources (Uses) - - 0%
Transfers In (Out) - - 0%
Increase (Decrease) in

Net Position 451,405 199,889 126%
Net Position - Beginning 3,665,815 3,492,541 5%
Change in GASB Standard - {26,615) -100%
Net Position - Ending 4.117,220 3,665,815 12%

- The District's total revenues were $2,609,921. A significant portion, 20%, of the District's total
revenue comes from the utilities operations. Revenue available to fund governmental activities
consists of charges for services (87%), lot leases (9%), and other revenues (4%}




The total cost of all programs and services was $2,158,516; 26% of these costs were for
utilities production and administration expenses. Expenses for governmental activities
consisted of costs for general administration (26%), police and safety (15%), parks (38%),
special events (7%), and customer service (14%).

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the District’s governmental activities decreased approximately 3%, and total
expenses decreased by 12%.

e Charges for services (gate revenues and special events revenues) increased $16,716.
e Lot lease and rental revenues increased by $34,094.

e The District sold assets in the prior year resulting in gain of $108,000, but asset
sales only amounted to $6,000 in the cuirent year.

e The cost of all governmental activities this year was $1,592,756. As shown in the
Statement of Activities, the amount that our lessors ultimately financed for these
activitics through lot lease revenues was $186,064 because most of the costs were
paid by those who directly benefited from the programs ($2,336,007).

Business-type Activities

Revenues of the District’s business-type activities (see table A-2) increased by $4,399 and
expenses decreased by 14% ($565,760 from $656,846).




THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As the District completed the fiscal year, its governmental funds (as presented in the
balance sheet on Exhibit C-1) reported a combined fund balance of $1,255,974, which is an
increase from the prior year’s total of $914,916. The following items effecting fund
balance should be noted:

e In the current year, expenditures were less than revenues by $368,236.

e The revenues in the general fund decreased approximately 2% from the prior period
and expenses for the general fund decreased 7% from the prior period. In the
current year, the general fund expended $418,822 for capital expenditures.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revised the budget several times. Even with these
adjustments, actual revenues were $97.208 above budgeted amounts and expenditures were
$49,382 less than final budget amounts.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2019, the District had $8,806,980 invested in a broad range of capital assets,
including buildings, furniture and equipment, and utilities equipment (see Table A-3). This

amount represents a net increase (including additions and deductions) of $390,623, or 5%,
over last year.

Table A-3
Fixed Assets

Governmental Balance Deletions/ Balance
Activities: 10-1-18 Additions  Reclassifications 9-30-19
Land $ 429903 - - 429,903
Construction in Progress 9,022 88,3306 - 97,358
Buildings &

Improvements 6,152,443 236,893 - 6,389,336
Furniture & Equipment 1,040,864 93,594 28,200 1,106,258

Accumulated Depreciation _ (5,408.970) (279.371) (28.200) (5,660,141)
Net Capital Assets $2223262 $.139452 § - $ 2362714

10




Business-Type Balance Deletions/ Balance

Activities; 10-1-18 Additions  Reclassifications ~ 9-30-19
Buildings&

Improvements $ 559,832 § - b - $ 559,832
Equipment 224,293 - - 224,293
Accumulated Depreciation ( 522.098) (35.599) - (557.697)
Net Capital Assets $§ 262027 $(35599) § - $ 226428

More detailed information about the District’s capital assets is presented in the notes to the
financial statements.

Debt

The District owes Lubbock County for prior election costs $84,893 which is due in annual

installments of $14,149 for the next 6 years. This liability is reported in the governmental
funds.

Due
Governmental Balance Balance Within
Activities: 10-1-18 Additions Decreases 0-30-19 One Year
$ 99042 § - $ 14,149 % 84.893 $14.149
Total L.-T Debt $ 99042 § - $ 14,149 3 84,893 $ 14,149

More detailed information about the District’s long-term obligations is presented in the
notes to the financial statements.

11
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The District’s elected officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2020
budget and fees. Factors considered include the current economy and the needs of the
District in the coming year. The Board has adopted budgets and set fees accordingly.

If these estimates are realized, the District’s budgetary general fund fund balance is not
expected to change appreciably by the close of 2020.

CONTACTING THE BISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the
money it receives, If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the District’s office located at Buffalo Springs Lake in Lubbock,
Texas.

12
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EXHIBIT A1

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2019

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable

Deposits

Net Pension Asset

Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings & Improvements, net
Furniture & Equipment, net
Construction in Progress

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
" Deferred Qutflows - Pension
Deferred QOutflows - OPEB

TOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Renter Deposits
Unearned Revenue
Due within one year
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due in more than one year
Net OPEB Liability

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED lNFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Deferred Inflows - Perision
Deferred Inflows - OPERB

Total Deferred inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 1,376,703 $ 46,621 $ 1,423,324
- 49,180 49,180
- 50 50
169,768 38,903 208,671
429,903 - 429,903
1,583,567 172,845 1,756,412
251,886 53,682 305,468
97,358 - 97,358
$ 3909185 3% 361,181 $ 4,270,366
$ 155,438 $ 24741 § 180,179
5,083 848 5,931
$ 160,521 3% 25589 $ 188,110
$ 28959 3 39,312 § 68,271
1,651 - 1,651
5,226 - 5,226
14,149 - 14,149
70,744 - 70,744
25,150 4,386 29,536
3 145,879 § 43,698 § 189,577
124,757 20,301 142,058
6,511 1,110 7,621
128,268 21,411 149,679
$ 2,362,714 § 226,427 $ 2,589,141
1,432 845 95234 1,528,079
$ 3,795,559 % 321661 $ 4,117,220

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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LUBBOCK CCUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NG. 1

Lubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended September 30, 2019

Program Revenues

-14-

EXHIBIT B-1

MNet {Expense} Revente and

Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Primary Governmen
Charges for Grantsand  Grants and Govemmental Business-typa
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Aclivities Total
Government Activities:
General Administration 417,436 $ - 3 - % - § (417,438) - {417,436)
Police and Safety 240,504 - - - (240,504) - {240,504)
Parks 599,139 1,763,033 - - 1,163,894 - 1,163,894
Special Events 110,280 52,729 - - (57,551) - (57,551)
Customer Service 225,397 - - - {225,3897) - {225,397)
Totai Government Activities 1,692,756 1,815,762 - - 223,006 - 223,006
Business-type Activities .
Utilities Fund 565,760 520,245 - - - (45,515} (45,515}
Total Primary Government 2,158,618 2,336,007 - - 223,006 {45,515) 177,491
General Revenues
Lot Lease Revenus 186,064 - 186,064
Investment Earnings 3,203 - 3,203
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 6,000 - 6,000
Other Revenue {Expense 78,647 - 78,647
Transfers (27,178) 27,178 -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 246,736 27,178 273,914
Change in Net Position 469,742 (18,337) 451,405
Net Position - Beginning 3,325,817 339,998 3,665,815
Net Position -- Ending $ 3,795,659 $ 321,661 $ 4,117,220

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-1
LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas
BALANCE SHEET -- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2018
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,376,703 $ - $ 1,376,703
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,376,703 $ - $ 1,376,703
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 28,959 $ - $ 28,959
Renter Deposits 1,651 - 1,651
Unearned Revenues 5,226 - 5,226
Due to County-Election Costs 84,893 - 84,893
Total Liabilities 120,729 - 120,729
FUND EQUITIES
Fund Balance-Unassigned 1,255,974 - 1,265,974
Total Fund Equities 1,255,974 - 1,255,974
BILITIE DE $ 1,376,703 $ - $ 1,376,703

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-1R

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances -- Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position {A-1)
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Included in the items related to noncurrent assets is the recognition of the City's
proportionate share of the net pension asset required by GASB 68 in the
amount of $169,768, a deferred resource outflow related to Pensions in the
amount of $155,438, and a deferred resource inflow in the amount of $121,757,
This resulted in an increase in net position by $203,449.

Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the City's proportionate
share of the net OPEB liability required by GASB 75 in the amount of $25,150.
The net position included a deferred resource outflow related to OPEB in the
amount of $5,083 and a deferred ressourse inflow of $6,511. This resulted in
a decrease in net position by $26,578.

Net Position of Governmental Activities -~ Statement of Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$ 1,265,974

2,362,714

203,449

(26,578)

$ 3,795,550
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EXHIBIT C-2
LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES--
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 3¢, 2019
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
_ Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES:
Gate Revenue $ 1,711,148 - $ 1,711,148
Special Events Revenue - 52,729 52,729
Lot Lease Revenue 186,054 - 186,064
Rental Revenue 51,886 - 51,886
Interest Revenue 3,203 - 3,203
Other Operating Revenue 78,6847 - 78,647
Total Revenues 2,030,848 52,729 2,083 677
EXPENDITURES
Current
Salaries 535,940 31,440 567,380
Payroll Taxes 12,240 426 12,666
Employee Benefits 127,083 6,423 133,506
Tools and Supplies 43,039 8 43,047
Repairs & Maintenance 121,101 951 122,052
Utilities 189,220 891 160,111
Office Supplies 14,999 - 14,999
Printing and Postage 6,850 422 7,272
Advertising and Public Relations 5,744 30,045 35,789
Direct Promotional Expense - 25,308 25,308
Dues, Fees and Subscriptions 2,926 344 3,270
Training and Travel 14,382 187 14,569
Accounting and Legal 28,500 - 28,500
Election Expense 3,354 - 3,351
Contracted Services 18,126 - 18,126
Rental Expense 14,728 - 14,728
Bank Fees and Charges 24,515 - 24,515
Insurance 28,654 655 29,309
Other 13,332 789 14,121
Capital Outlay 418,822 - 418,822
Total Expenditures 1,623,552 97,889 1,721,441
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 407,396 {45,160} 362,236
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 6,000 6,000
Operating Transfers In - 45,160 45,160
Operating Transfers Out {72,338) - (72,338)
Total Other Sources (Uses) {66,338) 45,160 {21,178)
Excess of Revenues & Cther Financing Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures & Other Financing Uses 341,058 - 341,088
Fund Balance--Beginning of Year 914,916 - 914,916
Fund Balance-—-End of Year $ 1255974 - $  1,255974

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-3

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 341,058

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
("SOA" are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
staternent of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital outlays during
the current period. 418,822

The depreciation of capital assets is not reported in the funds. This is the amount
of current depreciation on these assets, (279,371}

The implementation of GASB 68 required that certain expenditures be de-expended
and recorded as deferred resource outflows. These contributions made after the
measurement date of 12/31/18 caused the change in the ending net position fo
increase, Contributions made before the measurement date and during the 2019
fiscal year were also expended in the 2019 fiscal year and recorded as an increase
in net pension expense for the District. The District's proportionate share of the TMRS
pension expense on the plan as a whole had to be recorded as an expense. The o
result of these adjustments is to decrease the change in net position by $7,977. (7,977)

The implementation of GASB 75 required that certain expenditures be de-expended
and recorded as deferred resource outflows. These contributions made after the
measurement date of 12/31/18 caused the change in the ending net position to
increase. Contributions made before the measurement date and during the 2019
fiscal year were also expended in the 2019 fiscal year and recorded as an increase .
in net OPERB expense for the District. The District's proportionate share of the OPEB
expense on the plan as a whole had to be recorded as an expense. The resi
of these adjustments is to decrease the change in net position by $2,790. {2.790)

Change in Net Position -- Statement of Activities ' $ 489,742

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this staternent.
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EXHIBIT D-1

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

t.ubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2019

ASSETS

Current Assets:

. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts-Receivable
Deposits

Total Current Assels

Fixed Assets:
Buildings & Improvements, net
Fumiture & Equipment, net

Total Fixed Asgetls

Other Assets:
Net Pension Asset

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

- Deferred Outflows - Pension
Deferred Quifiows - OPEB

JOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES

LIABILITIES

Current Ligbilities
Accounts Payable

Non-current Liabilities
Net OPEB Liability

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows - Pension
Deferred Inflows - OPEB

Totat Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted-

Total Net Position

The accormpanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type
Activities--
Enterprise Funds

$ 46,621
49,180

50
95,851

172,845
_ 53,582
226,427

38,903
38,903

$ 361,181

$ 24,741
848

$ 265,589

£ 30,312

4386
43,698

20,301
1,410
21,411

226,427
95,234

321,661
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EXHIBIT D-2

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. %
Lubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION--
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Business-Type
Activities--
Enterprise Funds

Utilities Funds.

Opeialing Revenues S e
Water Revenue = - $ 168,274 . ..

Sewer Revenue - 150,931
Garbage Revenus 162,910
Reserve Charge Revenue 9,758
Roads ' 78,821
Late Charges o . 8,451
Total Operating Revenues ' 520,245 .
Operating Expenses LT
Salaries - 192,275
Payroll Taxes : o 7,273
Employee Benefits '30,543
Tools & Supplies 3,011
Repairs & Maintenance 29,475
Utilities o 41,088
Sewer & Disposal Expense 202,634
Water Purchases 121,783
Dues, Fees & Subscriptions L=
Training & Travel 1,233
Rental Expense 3,179
Insurance o S : 1,155
Depreciation . 35,569
Other o 2,512
Total Operating Expenses 565,760
Qperating Income (L oss) Before et
Overating Transfers {45,515)
Non-Operating Reventies (Expenses) . SRR
Operating Transfers In 27178 .
Gain on Sale of Assets -
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 27,178
Net Income (Loss) - {18:337)
NET POSITION PR
Net Position, Beginning of Year 339,008 -

Net Position, End of Year 321881

The accormpanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-3

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL. AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS--
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Net Cash Provided {(Used) by Operating
~Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities;
Operating Transfers

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital

Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital & Related Financing Activites:
Acquisition of Fixed Assets
Sale of Capital Assets
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital &
Related Financing Activites

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalenis

Cash & Cash Equivalents--Beginning of Year

Recongiliaton of Operating Income (Loss) {o
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile to Net Cash
Provided {Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables
(increase) Decrease in Net Pension Asset
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflows of Resources
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Liability
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Resource Inflows

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating

_ Activities -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type
Activities--
Enterprise Funds
_Utilities Funds
$ 511,997 ..
(407,944)
(121,377)

{17,324}

27178

27,178

(45:515)

35,509
. {8,248)
(5,491)
(11,182)
(1,874)
(858)
20,255

17,324)
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1, Texas was organized
under the provisions of Section 59, Article 16, of the Constitution of Texas, as proved in
Chapter 25, General Laws enacted by the 39" Legislature at its Regular Session in 1925. The
District operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following
services as authorized by its charter: Public safety, streets and roads, sanitation, culture- -
recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.
Other services include utilities operations.

The Board of Directors, a five-member group constituting an on-going entity, is the level of
government which has governance responsibilities for the conserving, preserving, protecting,
recharging and prevention of waste of the Buffalo Springs Lake, as permitted by Chapter 52
of the Texas Water Code. The District currently receives funding only from local sources, but
must comply with the concomitant requirements of these funding source entities and some
state sources. However, the District is not included in any other governmental “reéporting
entity” as defined in Section 2100, Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards, since Board members are elected by the public and have decision
making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to significantly
influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

The basic financial statements of the Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District
No. 1 have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United Sates of America {("GAAP") applicable fo governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB") is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

1. The Reporting Entity

The District, for financial purposes, includes all of the funds and account groups relevant
to the operations of the Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1.
The financial statements presented herein do not include agencies which have been
formed under applicable state laws or separate and distinct units of government apart from
the Lubbock County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1.

The financial statements of the District include those of separately administered

organizations that are controlled by or dependent on the District. Control or dependence
is determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, funding and appomtment
of the respective governing board. .



LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 2
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Polices (Continued)

2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

a. Basis of Presentation

-23-

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the overreporting of internal activities,
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each function of the District’'s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program cor function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does not
allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. Program revenues include
(a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by
the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues, including all of taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information
about the District's funds, with separate statemenis presented for each fund
category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds
are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund: This is the primary operating fund of the District. 1t accounts for all

financial resources of the District except those required to be accounted for in -
another fund.




LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 3
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies--Continued

in addition, the District reports the following fund types:

—24-

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises -
where the intent of the governing body is that the costs {expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. Operating
revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those
in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange

transactions or ancillary activities.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus. They are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred, regardiess of when the related
cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving} equal value in exchange,
include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenues from grants, entittements, and donations are recognized in the

fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognhized when
measurable and available. The District considers all revenues reported in the
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days
after year-end. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes.
Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under
susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue
when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually
received, Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both
measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt,
claims, and judgments, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they
have matured. General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. Proceeds from general long-term debt and acquisitions

under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTRGL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas ‘

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 4
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Proprietary Fund Types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus utilizing the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned
and become measurable and expenses in the accounting period in which they are
incurred and become measurable. The fund equity is segregated into net
investment in capital assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position.

c. Fund Balance Classification

Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have heen
placed on the use of the resources either {a) externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District does
not currently have any restricted fund balances.

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General
Fund.

The District would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by
committed resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively spend unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other
classified funds,

3. Financial Statement Amounts

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

. The District has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand
deposits, short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from
the date of acquisition, and cash with fiscal agent.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid
investments purchased with maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

b. Investments

Investments for the District are reported at fair value. The District categorizes its fair -
value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepied
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets. The State Treasurer's investment Pools are operated in accordance .

with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported values of the pools are the
same as the fair value of the pool shares (Level 1 inputs).




-26-

LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas ‘

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page &
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

¢. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

The District records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase
method of accounting for inventory.

- Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future periods and are recorded
as prepaid items.

d. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical
cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the
- date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000
is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-fine method over the estimated

useful lives:
Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 30
Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Vehicles 5-15
Office Equipment and Furniture 3-15
Computer Equipment 3

e. Receivable and Payable Balances

The District believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is

- provided in the financial statements to aveoid the obscuring of significant components
by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those
kalances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one
year of the period end.
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- LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 6
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

f.

Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers
hetween funds. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as
appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided,

‘deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and

expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost,
charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a- .
reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. TransfersIn
and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single “Transfers” line on the
government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables. -
are netted and presented as a single “Internal Balances” line of the government-wide
statement of net position.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of
management's estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of -Resources

" In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sormetimes report a separate

section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The City currently has two items which qualify for
reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement

. element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that

appliesto a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The District currently has two types of items which arise
under the accrual basis of accounting. These amounts are deferred and recognized-

-+ as an inflow of resources in the period when the amounts become available.

Pensions

- For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and -

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas County & District Retirement System

- {TCDRS) and additicns to/deductions from TCDRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have been

determined on the same basis as they are reported by TCDRS. For this purpose, pian

. contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the
- empioyee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds
-are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

investments are reported at fair value.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 7
September 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

j. Other Post-Employment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas County & District Retirement System
(TCDRS) and additions to/deductions from TCDRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by TCDRS. For this purpose, plan’
contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the
employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds
are recoghized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms
nvestments are reported at fair value.

Note B: Compliance and Accountability

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures’, violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are
reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations:

Violations Action Taken
None Reported Not Applicable

Note C: Deposits and Investments

The District's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository
contract. The depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the District's agent bank
approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect District funds on a day-to-day
basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to -
the extent of the depository bank’s dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
("FDIC") insurance.

Cash Deposits

At September 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the District’'s deposits (cash, certificates of
deposit, and interest bearing saving accounts included in temporary investments) was:
$1,423,324 and the bank balance was $1,457,204, The District’s cash deposits at September
30 and throughout the year were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collaterai g
held by the District’s agent bank in the District's name. =
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTRCOL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 8

. September 30, 2019

Note C: Deposits and Investments (continued)

Investments

The District is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment
Act, to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the
following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfelio diversification, (3) allowable
investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable
stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity
allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8} investment staff quality and
capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit.

The Public Funds Investment Act (“Act”) requires an annual audit of investment practices.
Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial
statements disclosed that in ‘the areas of investment practices, management reports an
establishment of appropriate policies, the District adhered to the requirements of the Act.
Additionally, investment practices of the District were in accordance with local policies.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the District. These
include, with certain restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies, and the
State of Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, {(3) certain municipal securities, (4) securities lending
program, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8)
investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and (10) commercial paper.

Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool

The Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Public
Funds Investment Act, chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code (the "Act”), provide for
the creation of public funds investment pools through which political subdivisions and other
entities may invest public funds. :

TexPool uses amortized cost to value portfolio assets and follows the criteria established by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 79 for use of amortized
cost,

Pursuant to subchapter G of chapter 404, the Comptroller of Public Accounts (the
“Comptroller”) administers the Texas Local Government Investment Pools (the “TexPool
Portfolios"} as public funds investment pools through the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust
Company (the “Trust Company”). The Trust Company is a special-purpose trust company
authorized to receive, transfer, and disburse money and securities as provided by sfatute or
belonging to the state, agencies, and local political subdivisions and other organizations
created on behalf of the state or agency or political subdivision of the state. The Comptroller
is the sole officer, director, and shareholder of the Trust Company. . -

The Comptroller and the Trust Company have contracted with an administrator and
investment manager (“Investrent Manager”™) for the TexPool Portfolios. TexPool invests in
U.S. Treasury and government agency securities, repurchase agreements, and certain
mutual funds.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 9
September 30, 2019

Note C: Deposits and Investments (continued)

In accordance with the Act, the Comptroller has appointed the TexPool Investment Advisory
Board to advise with respect to TexPool. The Board is composed equally of participants in
the TexPool Portfolios and other persons who do not have a business relationship with the
TexPool Portfolios and are qualified to advise the TexPool Portfolios.

The TexPool portfolio is designed and managed to ensure that is maintains its AAAm rating
(or the equivalent by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The following
guidelines are followed by the Investment Manager to maintain the portfolio maturity
consistent with a stable net asset value per share: 1) The maximum remaining maturity of
any security or other investment acquired for the portfolio shall be 397 calendar days or less;
2) the portfolio maintains a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less; and 3) the portfolio
maintains a weighted average life of 120 days or less. Maturity limits are applied as defined
in GASB 79.

State Street Bank and Trust, the custodian designated by the Investment Manager provides
fund accounting services for TexPool and is responsibie for marking-to-market the portfolio
holdings of TexPool on a daily basis. The shadow price is the net asset value per share of
TexPool, calculated using total investments measured at fair value at the calculation date.

Analysis of Specific Deposit and investment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to
the following specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related
disclosures:

a. Credit Risk

- Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized agencies are designed
to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the District was not significantly exposed
to credit risk.

b. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository
insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution’s frust department or agent but not in the District’'s name.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured,
are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty
or the counterparty’s frust department or agent but not in the District’s name. At year end,
the District was not exposed to custodial credit risk.




LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 10
September 30, 2019

Note C: Deposits and Investments {continued)

c. Concentration of Crédit Risk

-31-

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a
single issuer. At year end, the District was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an

investment. At year end, the District was not exposed to interest rate risk.

e. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
At year end, the District was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Note D: Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the period ended September 30, 2019, was as follows:

Balance

Governmental Balance Deletions/

Activities: 10-1-18 Additions Reclassifications 9-30-19

Land $ 429,903 - - $ 429,903

Construction in Progress 9,022 88,338 - 97,358

Buildings&

Improvemenis 6,152,443 236,893 - 6,382,336

Furniture & Equipment 1,040,864 93.594 {28,200) 1,106,258

Total Capital Assets $7.632,232 $418,823 § (28,200) $ 8.022 855

Less Accumulated

Depreciation:;

Buildings&

Improvements $4,599,572 $ 206,198 - $4,805,770

Furniture & Equipment 809,398 73,173 (28,200) 854,371

Total Accumulated '
Depreciation $5408870 $279371 $ (28,200) $5,660,141

Net Capital Assets §2,223262 §$139452 § - $2,362,714

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

General Administration
Police and Safety
Parks

Special Events
Streets

$ 59,641
10,862
148,881
11,787
48,200

$ 279,371




LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 11

September 30, 2019

Note D: Capital Assets (continued)

Business-Type
Activities:

Buildings & Improvements $ 559,832

Operating Equipment
Total Capital Assets

Less Accumulated
Depreciation:

Buildings&
Improvements
Operating Equipment
Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Capital Assets

Note E: Long-Term Obligations

-30-

Balance Deletions/ Balance
10-1-18 Additions Reclassifications 9-30-19

5 - $ - $ 559,832

224,293 - - 224 293

$ 784125 $ - $ - $ 784.125
$ 367,141 $ 19,845 $ - $ 386,986
154,957 15,754 - 170,711

$ 5220098 $ 35599 3 - $ 557697
$ 262027 $(35,599) $ - $ 226,428

Short term loans are accounted for through the applicable fund. General Fund proceeds from
loans (except those issued and retired during the current year) are shown in the financial
statements as Other Resources and principal payments as Other Uses. Enterprise fund loans
are shown in the appropriate fund.

The District owes Lubbock County for prior election costs, $84,893, which is due in annual
installments of $14,149 for the next 7 years. This liability is reported in the governmental

funds.

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2019 are as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Increagses = Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental Fund:
Due to County $ 99,042 $ - $ 14,149 $ 84,893 §$ 14,149
Net Pension Liability (136,753) 31,009 64,024 (169,768) -
Total OPEB Liability __ 30,186 1.086 6,122 25150 -
Total $ (7,525) $ 32,005 $ 84,295 $ (69,725)
Business-Type Activities:
Net Pension Liability $ (33,412) $ 5158 $ 10,649 $ (38,903) -
Total OPEB Liability 5,244 185 1,043 4,386 -
Total $ (28,168) $ 5343 $ 11,692 $(34,517) -
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbaock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 12
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Plan

Pian Description

The District provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits for all of its non-temporary
employees through a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the statewide Texas
County and District Retirement System (TCDRS). TCDRS is an agent multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan. The Board of Trustees of TCDRS is responsible for the
administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system.
TCDRS, in the aggregate, issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a
calendar year basis. The CAFR is available at www.tcdrs.org, or is available upon written
request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-2034.

Benefits Provided

Plan provisions are adopted by the Board of Trustees, within the options available in the
Texas state statutes governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act). Members can retire at ages 60 and
above with 8 or more years of service, with 30 years of service regardless of age, or when
the sum of their age and years of services equals 75 or more. Members are vested after 8
years of service but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any
employer-financed benefit.

Employers may elect to provide other optional benefits. Prior service gives employees
monetary credit for time worked for an organization before it joined the system. Buybacks
allow current employees fo re-establish a closed TCDRS account from previous service with
an employer. Partial lump-sum payments at retirement allow employees to withdraw part of
their TCDRS account balance as a lump sum at retirement with a reduced monthly benefit.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions to the plan, with
interest, and employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is
adopted by the Board within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the
resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the District’'s commitment to
contribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum
of the employee’s accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to
a monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.

Annually, the District reviews the plan to determine benefit and contribution levels.
Employees covered by benefit terms

At December 31, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 8
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 40
Active employees _20

Total 68
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 13
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Plan {coniinued)

Contributions

A combination of three elements funds each employer’s plan: employee deposits, employer
contributions and investment income.

¢ The deposit rate for employees is 4%, 5%, 6% or 7% of compensation, as adopted
by the employer's governing body.

» Participating employers are required, by law, to contribute at actuarially determined
rates, which are determined annually.

e Investment income funds a large part of the benefits employees earn.

The district's contribution rate is calculated annually on an actuarial basis, although the
employer may elect to contribute at a higher rate. The District contribution rate is based on
the TCDRS funding policy adopted by the TCDRS Board of Trustees and must conform with
the TCDRS Act. The employee contribution rates are set by the district and are currently
7%.

Employers have the option of paying more than the required contribution rate each year.
Exira contributions can help employers "pre-fund” benefit increases, such as cost-of-living
adjustment to retirees, and they can be used to help offset or mitigate future increases in the
required rate due to negative plan experience. There are two approaches for making extra
contributions: (a) paying an elected contribution rate higher than the required rate and (b)
making an extra lump-sum contribution to the employer account.

Administrative costs of TCDRS are financed through the system’s general reserves, which
are part of the Endowment Fund.

Employees for the District were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings
during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the District were 6.74% and 6.99% in
calendar years 2018 and 2019, respectively. The District’s confributions to TCDRS for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 were $44,110, and were equal to the required
contributions.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NQ. 1
L ubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 14
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Plan (continued)

Net Pension Liability

The District’'s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the
Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used for GASB Calculations:

The actuarial assumptions that determine the Total Pension Liability as of December 31,
2018 were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1,
2013 — December 31, 2016, except where required to be different by GASB 68. The key
assumptions used in the calculation of the total pension liability are as follows:

Valuation Timing Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated on a calendar
year basis as of December 31, two years prior to the end of the fiscal
year in which the contributions are reported.
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method
Recognition of economic/demographic
Gains or losses
Recognition of assumption changes
Or inputs Straight-line amortization over Expected Working Life

Straight-line amortization over Expected Working Life

Asset Valuation Method

Smoothing period 5 year
Recognition method Non-asymptotic
Corridor Nene

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases Same as funding valuation: See Below

Investment Rate of Return 8.10% (Gross of administrative expenses)

Cost-of-Living Adjustments Cost-of-Living Adjustments for Lubbock County Water Control and
improvement District #1 are not considered to be substantively
automatic under GASB 68. Therefore, no assumption for future cost-
of-living adjustments is included in the GASB calculation. No
assumption for future cost-ofliving adjustments is included in the
funding valuation.

Retirement Age
Turnover

NMortality

Same as funding valuation: See Below
Same as funding valuation: See Below

Same as funding valuation: See Below
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
LLubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 15
September 30, 2019

Note F:  Pension Plan {continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used for Funding Valuation.

Economic Assumptions

TCDRS system-wide economic assumptions:

Real Rate of return 5.25%
Inflation 2.75%
L.ong-term investment return 8.00%

The assumed long-term investment return of 8% is net after investment and administrative
expenses. It is assumed retuins will equal the nominal annual rate of 8% for calculating the
actuarial accrued liability and the normal cost contribution rate for the retirement plan of each
participating employer.

The annual salary increase rates assumed for individual members vary by length of service
and by entry-age group. The annual rates consist of a general wage inflation component of
3.25% (made up of 2.75% inflation and 0.5% productivity increase assumptions) and a merit,

- promotion and iongevity component that on average approximates 1.6% per year for a career
employee.

Employer-specific economic assumptions:
Growth in membership 0.0%
Payroll Growth 3.25%
The payroll growth assumption is for the aggregate covered payroll of an employer.

Demographic Assumptions

TCDRS system-wide demographic assumptions:

Replacement of Terminated Members - New employees are assumed to replace any
termirated members and have similar eniry ages.

‘Disability — Members who become disabled are eligible to commence benefit payments
regardless of age. Rates of disability are in a custom table based on TCDRS experience.

Mortality rates for active members were based on 90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee

 "Mortality Table for males and 90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for

- females, projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014. Mortality rates for

service retirees, beneficiaries, and non-depositing members were based on 130% of the RP-

. 2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and 110% of the RP-2014 Healthy

< Annuitant-Mortality Table for females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Uitimate

- scale after 2014.. Mortality rates for disabled retirees were based on 130% of the RP-2014

. Disabled Aninuitant Mortality Table for males and 115% of the RP-2014 Disabied Annuitant

Mortality Table for females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after
2014,
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~ o LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
- Lubbock, Texas
{
( : NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 16
- September 30, 2019
f :
{ Note F: Pension Plan {(continued)
. ‘ i Family Compogsition - For current retirees, beneficiary information is supplied by TCDRS. .
{0 TForpurposes. of calculating the Survivor Benefit for current depositing and non-depositing
s .members;- male members are assumed to have a female beneficiary who is three years.
- younger. Female members are assumed to have a male beneficiary who is three years older.
/ Employer-specific demographic assumptions:
PR co e OtherTerminations of Employment - The rates of assumed fulure termination from active -
e e o participation in the plan for reasons other than death, disability or retirement vary by length
P ool . of service; enfry-age group (age at hlrc) and gender. Mo termination after eligibility for~
“ retirement is assumed. RN
- Withdrawals = Members who terrninate may either elect to leave their account with TCDRS
; - or withdraw their funds. The probability that a member elects a withdrawal varies by length
Co - of service and vesting schedule. For non-depositing members who are not vc.sted 100%
{ are assumed to elect a withdrawal. :
Lo oo The longerm: expected rate of return on TCDRS assets is determined by adding expected -
O e o inflation to-expected long-term real returns, and reflecting expected volatility and correlation.
g = The capital market assumptions and information shown below are provided by TCDRS'
AT - investment consultant, Cliffwater LLE. The numbers shown are based on January 2019 - -
{ information for a 10-year time harizon. ' -
- . Note -that-the valuation assumption for long-term expected raturn is re-assessed at a
{ C e e minimum of every four vears, and is set based on a 30-year time horizon; the most recent -
v et analysis was performed in 2017, See Milliman’s TCDRS Investigation of Expenence report
{' : L for the period January 1, 2013 — December 31, 2016 for more details. o S,
( T e : ‘ Geometric Real
p S e Target Rate of Return
: : f : - Asset Class Allocation {Expected minus fnflation}- ~ -

U3 Equities 13.50% 5.40%

Private Equity 18.00% £.40%

Global Equities 2.50% 5.70% ARV

International Equities-Developed 10.00% - 3.40% g ‘
( e International Equities-Emerging 7.00% 5.90%
) ' Investment-Grade Fonds 3.00% 1.60%
{ wol Strategic Credit 12,00% 4,39%
{ S Direct Lending 11.00% 7.95%

R Distressed Debt 2.00% 7.20%

( A REIT Equities 2.00% 4.15%
{ Master Limited Partnerships 3.00% 5.35% e e
, ' rivate Reul Estate Parlnerships 6.00% 6.30% w s
Hedge Funds _ 13.00% 3.90% '

{ Total . 160.00%
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HUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

l.ubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 17
September 30, 2019

MNote F: Pension Plan {(continued)

Discount Rate

“The ‘discount rate is the smgle rate of return that, when applied to ali prOJected benent. BEE
payments -results.in an actuarial present value of pro;ected benefit payments equal to the R

sum of the following:

- 1. The actuarial present value of benefit payments projected to be made in future periods: -7

irt which (a) the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be

- greater than the benefit payments that are projected to be made in that period and (b} o0

i pensicn: plan-assets up o that point are expected fo be invested using a strategy to

‘achieve the long-term rate of return; calculated. using the fong-term expected mie af-. SR ‘

return on pension plan investments.

2. The actuarial present value of pro;ected henefit: payments not included in (1) ca{culated

using the municipal bond rate.

- Therefore, if -plan. investments i a given future year are greater than projec:ted henefit- -~ -
-payments in that'year and are invested such that they are expected to earn the long«termy -+ .

- rate of return; the discount rate applied to proiected benefit payments in that year should be

-the long-term expected rate of retuin on plain investments. If future years exist where thisis -~ .|
- not-the case, then an index rate reflecting the yield ona 20-year, tax-exempt. munmipal bond‘ SEPN

- should be used to discount the. prOJected benefit paympnts for those years.

- In-order to-determine the dlscount rate used by the District, an alternative me’fhod was uss&d R

-+ to determine the sufficiency of the fiduciary net position in all future years., The alternative
~. method reflects the funding requirements under the District's funding policy and the !eqai-
requirements under the 1(.,DRS Act , ,

1. . TCDRS has a funding pohcy thre the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabifity (UAAL) shall

, be amortized as a level percent of pay over 20-year closed layered periods.

- 2. Underthe TCDRS Act, the employer is legally required to make the contribution specified
in the funding policy.

The District's: assets are projected to exceed ifs accrued liabilities in 20 years or less.

cost.

4. Any increased cost due to the adoptlon of a COLA s requnred to be funded over a peri d,‘ S e

of 15 years, if applicable.

- +Since-the projected fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay projected benefit . =~~~ -~
¢ .. payments in-all future years, the discount rate for purposes of calculating the total pension * -~ * "~
« -~ fiability and net pénsion liability of the employer is equal to the long-term assumed rate of SRR
. oreturn on investments,  This long-term assumed rate of return should be net of investment’ ™~ *
v -iexpenses,-but gross of administrative expenses for GASB 68 purposes. Therefore, a° ©+

discount rateof 8.10% has been used. This rate reflects the long-term assumed rate of

=return on . assets Tor funding purposes of 8.00%, net of all expenses, increased by 0.10% tn

he gross of administrative expenses.

When this point is reached, the employer is stili required to contribute at least the normal
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1. .-
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 18
September 30, 2019

Note F:  Pension Plan {continued)

Change in the Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

: (a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balance at 12/31/17 $ 1,598,928 $ 1,769,093 § (170,165)
Changes for the year: S

Service cost T 109,538 109,538

Interest L 131,744 131,744

Change of benefit terms ' T - -

Effeet of economic/demographic gains or losses s (213,088) (213,088)

Changes of assumptions : ' - -o-

Refund of contributions o (104,991) (104,991) .

- Contributions - employer - ' - 50,738 (50,738)
. Contributions - employee o - 52,695 (52,695)
Net investment income ‘ . - (33,670) 33,670
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (62,249) (62,249) -

_ Administrative expense . : - (1,340) 1,340

Other changes . o - (1L,723) 1,723

Net changes {139.046) {100,340} {38,506)
~ Balance at 12/31/18 $ 1,459,882 § 1668553 § (208,671)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following. presents the net pension liability of the District, calculated using the discount

rate of 8.10%, as-well as what the District's net pension liability would be if it were calculated .~
* using a discount-rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.10%) or 1-percentage- poant highor o

(9.10%) than the current rate: _ _ o

1% Decrease in =~ 1% Increase m
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(7.10%) {8.10%) (9.10%)
District's net pension - : :
fiability/(asset) $ (45,147) % (208,671) $ (349,047)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

- Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Posmon is available in a:
:geparately-issued TCDRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Inter net at
www. tedrs.com. e




-40-
LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 |
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 19
September 30, 2019

Note F: Pension Plan {continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Relfated to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the district recognized pension expense of $54 286.

At September 30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows ‘of resources related to pensions from the following sources: : ‘

Deferred Outﬂnws Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual
econoric experience ¥ 20,737 % 142,059
Changes in actuarial assumptions k3 11,578 % -
Difference between projected and actual ‘
investment earnings 5 114,926
Contribufions subsequent to the measure :
date December 31, 2016 $ - 32,939 $ -

Total $ 180,180 $ 142,059

$32,939 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from . -
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension.
expense as follows:

Year ended Dec 31:

2019 3 (9,264)

2020 (44,549)
2021 24,132
2022 34,863
2023 -
Thereafter -
Total $ 5,182
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 20
September 30, 2019

Note G: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

1.

Plan Description

The District participates in the retiree Group Term Life program for the Texas County &
District Retirement System (TCDRS), which is a statewide, multiple-employer, public
employee retirement system. The TCDRS Group Term Life program has been
determined to be an unfunded OPEB plan as the GTL fund does not meet the
requirements of a trust under Paragraph 4b of GASB 75, because the assets of the GTL
fund can be used to pay active GTL benefits which are not part of the OPEB plan. For
GASB 75 purposes, the OPEB plan is not a cost sharing ptan, so the annual benefit
payments are treated as being equal to the employer’s actual retiree GTL contributions
for the year. '

Benefits Provided

« All full- and part-time non-temporary employees participate in the plan,
regardless of the number of hours they work in a year and are eligible for the
TCDRS pension plan. Only employers that have elected participation in the
retiree Group Term Life program are included in the OPEB plan.

o The plan provides a $5,000 post-retirement death benefit to beneficiaries of
service retirees and disability retirees of employers that have elected
participation in the retiree GTL program.

. o The OPEB benefit is a fixed $5,000 lump-sum benefit.

o No future increases are assumed in the $5,000 benefit amount

¢ Benefit terms are established under the TCDRS Act. Participation in the retiree
GTL program is optional and the employer may elect to opt out of (or opt into)
coverage as of Jan. 1 each year.

At the December 31, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following employees
were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries cutrently receiving benefits 6
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 4
Active employees 20
Total 30
Contributions

Contributions made to the retiree GTL Program are held in the GTL Fund. The GLT
fund does not meet the requirements of a trust under Paragraph 4b of GASB 75, as the
assets of the GTL fund can be used to pay active GTL benefits which are not part of the
OPEB plan.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 21
September 30, 2019

Note G: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

The District's contribution rate for the retiree GTL program is calculated annually on an
actuarial basis, and is equal to the cost of providing a one-year death benefit equal to
$5,000.

Contribution Rates

District 0.40% 0.32%

Current Fiscal Year Employer Contributions $ 2,169

4.  Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions:

Additional Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Valuation Date December 31, 2018

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method
Recognition of economic/demographic

Gains or losses Straight-line amortization over Expected Working Life
Recognition of assumption changes
Or inputs Straight-line amortization over Expected Working Life
Asset Valuation Method Does not apply
Inflation Does not apply
Salary increases _ ' Does not apply
Investment Rate of Return (Discount Rate) 4.10%

20 Year Bond GO Index published by
bondbuyer.com as of December 27,

2018
Cost-of-Living Adjustments : Does not apply
Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid

through the Pension Trust and
accounted for under reporting
requirements under GASE Statement
No. 68

Mortality rates — depositing members 90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee
Mortality Table for males and 90% of
the RP-2014 Active Employee
‘Mortality Table for females, projected
with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate
scale after 2014,

Mortality rates — service retirees 130% of the RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Mortality Table for males
and 110% of the RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-
2014 Ultimate scale after 2014.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 22
September 30, 2019

Note G: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensiohs

Mortality rates — disabled retirees 130% of the RP-2014 Disabled
Annuitant Mortality Table for males
and 115% of the RP-2014 Disabled
Annuitant Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-
2014 Ultimate scale after 2014

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total OPEB liability as of December 31, 2018
were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2013-
December 31, 20186, except where required to be different by GASB 75. '

5, Discount Rate

The TCDRS GTL program is treated as unfunded OPEB plan because the GTL trust
covers both actives and retirees and the assets are not segregated for these groups.
Under GASB 75 (paragraph 155), the discount rate for an unfunded OPEB pian shouid
be based on 20-year tax-exempt AA or higher Municipal Bonds. Therefore, a discount
rate of 4.10% based on the 20 Year Bond GO Index published by bondbuyer.com is
used as of the measurement date of December 31, 2018.

6. Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following schedule shows the impact of the Total OPEB Liability if the discount rate
used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the discount rate that was used (4.10%)
in measuring the Total OPEB Liability. Note that the healthcare cost trend rate does
not affect the Total OPEB Liability, so sensitivity to the healthcare cost trend rate is not
shown.

1% Decrease in Discount Rate 1% Increase in
Discount Rate (3.10%}) (4.10%) Discount Rate (5.10%)
Total OFERB Liability $ 35,247 $ 29,536 $ 25,085
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 23
September 30, 2019

Note G: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

7. OPEB Liabiiities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEBs

At September 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $29,536 for total OPERB liability.
The total OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2018 by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation — The following were changes to the
actuarial assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the Total OPEB
liahility since the prior measurement period:

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the Total OPEB
liability during the measurement period.

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of
$5,474.

Change in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability
(a)
Balance at 12/31/17 $ 35,430
Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,942
Interest 1,282
Change of benefit terms
Effect of economic/demographic experience {5,289)
Changes of assumptions (3,603)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee coniributions (226)
Other changes
Net changes (5,894
Balance at 12/31/18 5 29,536
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L UBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 24

September 30, 2019

Note G: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

At December 31,:2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferrpd
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual
actuarial experiences

Changes in actuarial assumptions

Difference between projected and actual
Investment earnings

Changes in proportion and difference between

The employer's contributions and the
Proportionate share of contributions

Total as of Dec. 21, 2017 measurement date
Contributions paid to TCDRS subsequent to the

measurement date
. Total as of fiscal year-end

Deferred Outtlows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

$ 3238 $ 4,533

3 1,185 $ 3,088

$ - s -

$ - i s -
$ 4423 % 7621

$ 1,508 —_—
$ 5831 § 7621

. The net -amounts of the employer's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to OPEB wili be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: '

Year ended December 31:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

Note H: Transfers

OPEB Expense Amount

$ (534)
(534)
(534)
(534)
(534)

528

.+ The following is a summary of District interfund transfers for the year ended September 30,

2019:
. Transfer from Amount Transfer To Explanation
- General Fund $ 45,180 Special Revenue Fund Supplement speciai events
‘General Fund . $ 27,178 Enterprise Fund

Supplement enterprise activities
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L UBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Page 25
September 30, 2018

Note |; Litigation
From time to time the District is party to various legal proceedings which occur in the District's
operations. These legal proceedings are not expected to have an adverse impact on the
operations or affected funds of the District. :

Note J;: Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts, theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets: business interruptions; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses;
natural disaster; and employee health, dental and accidental benefits. Commemial msurance
is purchased for claims arising from such matters.
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EXHIBIT E-1
LUBBQCK WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2019
General Fund
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actuat (Unfavorable)
Revenues :
Gate Revenue $ 1663290 $ 1,711,148 § 47,858
Lot Lease Revenue 184,100 186,064 1,864
Rental Revenue 59,000 51,886 {7,114)
interest Revenue 2,100 3,203 1,103
Cther Operating Revenue 25,250 78,647 53,397
Total Revenues 1,033,740 2,030,948 97,208
Expenditures
Current
Salaries 545,000 535,940 9,080
Payroli Taxes 18,250 12,240 4010
Employee Benefits 128,750 127,083 1,667
Tools and Supplies 44 500 43,039 1,461
Repairs & Maintenance 128,000 121,101 6,899
Utilities 193,250 189,220 4,030
Office Supplies 18,350 14,999 3,351
Printing and Postage 9,327 6,850 2,477
Advertising and Public Retations 6,250 5,744 508
Dues, Fees and Subscriptions 3,557 2,926 631
Training and Travel 15,100 14,382 718
Accounting and Legal 30,000 28,500 1,600
Election Expense 4,500 3,351 1,149
Contracted Services 19,500 18,126 1,374
Rentat Expense 16,750 14,728 2,022
Bank Fees and Charges 25,350 24,515 835
Insurance 31,000 28,654 2,346
Other 17,500 13,332 4,168
Capital Cutlay 420,000 418,822 1,178
Total Expenditures 1,672,934 1,623,652 49 382
Other Financing Sourges {Uses)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - 6,000 6,000
Operating Transfers In (Ouf) (75,000) (72,338} 2,662
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) {75,000} (66,338) 8,662
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 185,806 341,058 155,252
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 914,916 914,916 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,100,722 § 1,255974 § 155,252
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LUBBOCK WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
Lubbock, Texas

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

AND RELATED RATIOS - TCDRS

(unaudited)

~ Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost

Interest (on the Total OPEB Liability)

Effect of plan changes

Effect of assumption changes or inputs

Effect of economic/demographic {gains) or losses

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPER Liability - Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)

Pensionable covered payroll

Net OPEB Liability/(asset) as % of covered payroll
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EXHIBIT E-3

Measurement Year Ended September 30,

2018 2017
$ 1,942 2,086
1,282 1,080
(3,603) 1,579
- (5,289) 4,318
(226) (228)
(5,894) 8,815
35,430 26,615
$ 29,536 35,430
$ 636,976 759,179
4.64% 4.67%

Note: Only two yéars of data is presented in accordance with GASB #75, paragraph 245. "The information

for all periods for the 10-year schedules that are required to be presented as required suppltementary
information may not be available initially. In these cases, during the transition period, that information

should be presented for as many years as are available. The schedules should not include information
that is not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement.”
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{ UBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

September 30, 2019

Schedule of Pension Contributions — TCDRS

Valuation Timing -

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method
Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Changes in Assumptions and
Methods Reflected in the Schedule
of Employer Contributions*

Changes in Plan Provisions
Reflected in the Schedule of
Employer Contributions*

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated on a calendar
year basis as of December 31, two years prior {o the end of the fiscal
year in which the contributions are reported.

Entry Age

Level percentage of payroll, closed

0.0 vears (based on contribution rate calculated in 12/31/2018
valuation) '

S-year smoothed market
2.75%

Varies by age and service.
inflation.

4.9% average over career including

8.00%, net of administrative and investment expenses, mcludlng
inflation

Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to
commence receiving benefit payments based on age. The average
age at service retirement for recent retirees is 61.

130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and
110% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014.

2018: New inflation, mortality and other
assurnptions were reflected
2017: New mortality assumptions were reﬂec;ted

2015: No changes in plan provisions were reflected

in the Schedule

2016: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule
2017: New Annuity Purchase Rates were reflected for benefits earned
after 2017. '

2018: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule.

*Only changes that affect the benefit amount and that are effective 2015 and later are shown in the Notes to

" Schedule.
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LUBBOCK COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Lubbock, Texas

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
September 30, 2019

Schedule of OQPEB Contributions — TCDRS

Valuation Timing

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Recognition of economic/demographic
gains or losses
Recognition of assumption changes
or inputs
Asset Valuation Method
Inflation
Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Cost-of-Living Adjustment

Disability

Mortality
Depositing members

Service retirees, beneficiaries and
non-depositing members

Disabled retirees

Retirement

Other Termination of Employment

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated on a calendar
year basis as of December 31, two years prior to the end of the fiscal
year in which the contributions are reported.

Entry Age Normal

Straight-Line amortization over Expected Working Life
Straight-Line amortization over Expected Working Life
Does not apply
Does not apply
Does not apply

4.10%
20 Year Bond GO Index published by bondbuyer.com as of
December 27, 2018

Does not apply

Members who become disabled are eligible to commence benefit
payments regardless of age. Rates of disability are in a custom table
based on TCDRS experience.

90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for males and
90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-20114 Ultimate scale after 2014.

130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and
110% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014,

130% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for males
and 115% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for
females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale
after 2014.

Members eligible for service retirement are assumed to retire at rates
based on age and gender.

The rate of assumed future termination from active participation in the
plan for reasons other than death, disability or retirement vary by
length of service, entry-age group (age at hire) and gender. No
termination after eligibility for retirement is assumed.




OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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